PN

Ballantyne STRONG

ey

2015 Annual Report






Dear Ballantyne Strong Shareholders,

This year marked a significant change in the strategic direction of Ballantyne Strong. In 2015, my partners and
| at Fundamental Global Investors and our affiliate, CWA Asset Management Group, became the largest shareholder of
Ballantyne Strong. Our combined ownership represents over 22% of Ballantyne Strong’s shares outstanding. Our involvement
in Ballantyne Strong was driven by its dismal stock performance over the last few years and our decision that it was time for a
complete overhaul of the company and its businesses. So we rolled up our sleeves and got involved.

The first step was to create a new Board of Directors. On May 13, 2015, your new Board of Directors took control of
the oversight of the company. | would be remiss if | didn’t take this opportunity to express my significant gratitude to every
member of the new Board and let you know that we as shareholders are all very lucky to have this highly accomplished group
of business leaders supporting us through this transition to what we believe will be a much higher performing company in the
future.

The new Board of Directors conducted a comprehensive review of all of our businesses and worked to build a strategic
plan to reinvigorate the company. This was not an easy task. We decided very quickly that we needed a new leadership team
to guide the company to prosperity. We began a search to find leaders to run what we now call our Cinema and Digital Media
divisions.

As many of you know, Ballantyne Strong has a rich history in the Cinema industry having been a provider of products
and services to the Cinema industry for over 80 years. We were very fortunate when Ray Boegner, who has been with
Ballantyne Strong for over 30 years, agreed to lead our Cinema division. For those of you who do not know Ray personally, |
can tell you that Ray knows more about the Cinema industry than anyone | have ever met. He has a wealth of knowledge and
extraordinary relationships in the industry. We are very confident that Ballantyne Strong’s Cinema division is in good hands
under Ray’s leadership.

The Cinema division has been a very welcome surprise for us as we conducted our review of the businesses. A
discerning reader of our annual report might recognize that we have prioritized our Cinema division to reflect its importance to
our organization’s revenue and cash flows. The Cinema division manufactures what we believe are the highest quality movie
screens in the world out of a one-of-a-kind 76,000 square foot facility in Joliette, Quebec. The Cinema division also distributes
Cinema equipment to our wonderful list of customers in the industry where we are fortunate to have multiple decade-long
relationships with the best exhibitors in the world. If you have not visited our website featuring our high quality Cinema screens,
| would encourage you to visit http://strongmdi.com to learn more about what makes your company a leader in the Cinema
industry.

While it was not difficult to identify Ray Boegner as a clear and obvious choice to run our Cinema division, the Board
needed to search far and wide to find a leader for what is now our Digital Media division. While we conducted an extensive
search using all of the traditional outlets, we found Steve Schilling when we hired his firm S2 Ventures to help us figure out how
to grow and more effectively manage our Digital Media division. Steve began consulting the Board by conducting a several
month long strategic review of our Digital Media division and all of the interworking behind our operations, sales, finance and
technology. This strategic review involved an analysis of where we were and what we needed to change to turn this division in
the right direction. After countless presentations and hundreds of pages of PowerPoint slides, the Board made the decision to
hire Steve to run our Digital Media division. This isn’t Steve’s first rodeo. Steve has built several companies that experienced
significant growth under his leadership. In fact, it was a former shareholder of one of Steve’s past companies that reached out
to us to recommend Steve for the position. We are glad we received that call. Steve has made several organizational changes
to better serve our customers and promote profitable growth within the Digital Media division. We are hopeful that we will be
reporting back to you on Steve’s success to improve the revenue, profitability and cash flows of our Digital Media division. If



you have not visited our website featuring our digital media business, | would encourage you to visit http://convergent.com to
learn more.

One of our first goals under new leadership was to right-size the general and administrative expenses of the company.
The previous budgeting process did not match general and administrative expenses with the business cycle. Budgeting for
these expenses was based on what was spent in the previous year, but did not question whether the previous year’s expenses
were necessary. Over several years, expenses grew and revenue fluctuated with the business cycle.

The Board strongly believed that the budgeting process needed to change and we embarked upon a mission to
manage expenses like owners (since we are) and not take for granted the precious resources of the company. And so began
a rigorous process widely referred to as zero-based budgeting. For those not familiar, zero-based budgeting is not for the
faint of heart. Zero-based budgeting requires a tremendous amount of detailed analysis of every single penny the company is
spending and why the money is being spent.

In May we began a process of looking at every single expense at Ballantyne Strong and discussing if it was (1)
needed to have, (2) nice to have or (3) completely unnecessary. We found a lot of expenses that were completely unnecessary
and we eliminated them immediately. We also found a Iot of expenses that were nice to have but were not necessary and we
started the process for eliminating them as well.

Not every expense can be eliminated overnight. Expenses related to contractual obligations such as leases take time
to reduce. That said, we have seen the beginnings of the fruits of our labor. In 2015, we reduced our gross expenses by over
$7 million on an annual basis. When taking into account the new strategic investments we have made back into the business,
we have reduced our annual expenses by over $3 million. This is just the beginning. The Board believes there are many more
opportunities to reduce unnecessary and nice to have expenses. We will be working around the clock to show progress on
these initiatives.

One of the Board’s objectives for 2016 is to downstream all of our operations to two operating divisions, Cinema and
Digital Media, and dynamically allocate capital at the holding company to the highest return on invested capital opportunities
that we believe will help us grow our intrinsic value per share over the next few decades. To head up this initiative, the Board
asked me to step into the role of Executive Chairman in September 2015 and Chief Executive Officer in November 2015. | now
have three direct reports: Ray Boegner, President of Cinema, Steve Schilling, President of Digital Media and Nate Legband,
Chief Financial Officer. Our vision is that Nate and | will be the two senior executives at the holding company evaluating capital
allocation decisions.

One such opportunity that the Board has diligently evaluated and made a significant investment in is RELM Wireless
Corporation (“RELM”), which trades on the NYSE MKT under the ticker symbol of RWC. RELM designs and manufactures
wireless communications products sold to the government and public safety markets primarily under the BK Radio brand and
also manufactures products for the business, industrial and commercial markets under the RELM brand. For the last 16 years,
RELM has been under the leadership of its Chief Executive Officer, David Storey, who is a strong operating executive and loves
RELM almost as much as he loves his children. In the last few months, David and his team’s hard work and persistence has
paid off with RELM winning a historic $26 million contract with the Transportation Security Administration (TSA). Over the next
few months, be on the lookout for BK Radios as you go through security at the airport. We believe that this valuable contract
is just the beginning of a very successful period for RELM. | joined the Board of RELM in 2015 and | am quite pleased with
RELM’s progress since our involvement with the company.

The other company that the Board made a significant investment in is a Property & Casualty insurance company
called 1347 Property Insurance Holdings (“1347 PIH"), which trades on the NASDAQ under the ticker symbol of PIH. 1347
PIH is a homeowners insurance company that primarily writes business in Louisiana and is licensed to write business in Texas.



Our Board was initially interested in the company because of its very inexpensive valuation. By our calculations, 1347 PIH is
trading well below book value with a negative enterprise value, meaning it has more cash than equity market capitalization and
debt. We also like that 1347 PIH targets states with high property premiums and a favorable legislative environment where the
industry giants are looking to decrease coastal risk exposure. This combination positions the company to have much higher
returns on capital than your average insurance company. Finally, 1347 PIH is led by its Founder and CEO Doug Raucy who
we believe is a good operator and a Board of Directors that has significant ownership in the company.

The RELM and 1347 PIH investments represent a total of approximately $6 million invested into companies outside
of our core Cinema and Digital Media divisions. Despite making these investments, Ballantyne Strong had over $22 million of
cash with $0 of debt on its balance sheet at the end of 2015. Combining our cash and investments in RELM and 1347 PIH, we
had over $28 million at the end of 2015. In addition, as noted above, we are reinvesting over $3 million a year back into our
Cinema and Digital Media divisions. The goal is to maintain and grow our cash flow in those businesses while reducing the
corporate overhead at the holding company, which remains too high. We will continue to work to reduce overhead through
our zero-based budgeting initiative discussed above. We have favorable cash flows in our Cinema division, and we are
hopeful that Steve and team can turn the corner on the cash flows from our Digital Media division. This will leave us with two
valuable businesses as measured on a multiple of free cash flow. Finally, we believe we have a valuable real estate asset in
our Alpharetta, Georgia building and land. While it is difficult and perhaps foolish to try to pin-point an exact intrinsic value per
share estimate, we believe the current stock price presents an attractive investment opportunity. The Board has authorized a
700,000 share repurchase program because of this opportunity. While we are using an algorithm to repurchase shares, we
expect that if the price of the stock remains at current levels or falls to lower prices, we will be active buyers of the stock.

Hopefully by now it is clear that Ballantyne Strong is headed in the right direction. With the new Board of Directors
and senior leadership in place, we believe we have the right team to create shareholder value over the next few decades.
We have made significant progress with our zero-based budgeting efforts but we believe this is only the beginning of what
can be accomplished. We have begun to make progress allocating capital across the two operating divisions, Cinema and
Digital Media, as well as into new investment opportunities in RELM and 1347 PIH. We also believe the current stock price is
attractive and will look to repurchase more shares. Ballantyne Strong is a holding company with diverse business activities and
we expect those business activities and divisions to expand over the years to come.

We appreciate the shareholders of the company and we promise to work tirelessly to do what we believe is in the
best interest of the company over the long-run. We are thankful that you are our partners in this journey and we look forward

to updating you on our progress as time passes.

On May 23rd we will be hosting our annual meeting in Fort Lauderdale, Florida. We hope to see you there.

March 15, 2016 D. Kyle Cerminara
Chairman & CEO
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains not only historical information, but also forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. In addition, forward-looking statements may be made in press releases, orally, at conferences, on the Company’s
web site, or otherwise, by or on behalf of the Company. Statements that are not historical are forward-looking and reflect
expectations for future Company performance. These statements often use words such as “anticipates,” “targets,”
“expects,” “hopes,” “estimates,” “intends,” “plans,” “goal,” “believes,” “continue” and other similar expressions or
future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “may,” “might,” “should,” “would” and “could.” These statements involve
certain known and unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict and are often beyond the
Company’s control. For these statements, the Company claims the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking
statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statement and should consider the following
uncertainties and risks, as well as the risks and uncertainties more fully discussed elsewhere in this report, including
under Item 1 A. Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in any of the Company’s subsequent Securities and
Exchange Commission filings for further information about factors that could affect such forward-looking statements: the
Company’s ability to expand its revenue streams to compensate for the lower demand for its digital cinema products and
installation services, potential interruptions of supplier relationships or higher prices charged by suppliers, the
Company’s ability to successfully compete and introduce enhancements and new features that achieve market acceptance
and that keep pace with technological developments, the Company’s ability to successfully execute its investment
strategy, the Company’s ability to retain or replace its significant customers, the impact of challenging global economic
environment or a downturn in the markets, economic and political risks of selling products in foreign countries, risks of
non-compliance with U.S. and foreign laws and regulations, cybersecurity risks and risks of damage and interruptions of
information technology systems, the Company’s ability to retain key members of management and successfully integrate
the new executives, acquisition-related risks, the Company’s ability to assert its intellectual property rights, the impact of
natural disasters and other catastrophic events, the adequacy of insurance, and the impact of having a controlling
stockholder.

Given the risks and uncertainties, readers should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements
and should recognize that the statements are predictions of future results which may not occur as anticipated. Actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-looking statements and from historical results, due to
the risks and uncertainties described herein, as well as others not now anticipated. New risk factors emerge from time to
time and it is not possible for management to predict all such risk factors, nor can it assess the impact of all such factors
on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially
from those contained in the forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, the Company assumes no obligation
to update forward-looking statements to reflect actual results or changes in factors or assumptions affecting such
forward-looking statements.

PART 1
Item 1. Business
General Description of Business

General

Ballantyne Strong Inc. (“BTN”, “Ballantyne”, “the Company”, “we”, “our”, and “us”) is a holding company
with diverse business activities focused on serving the cinema, retail, financial and government markets. The Company
and its subsidiaries design, integrate, and install technology solutions for a broad range of applications; develop and
deliver out-of-home messaging, advertising and communications; manufacture projection screens; and provide managed
services including monitoring of networked equipment to our customers. We add value through our design, engineering,
manufacturing excellence and customer service.

Ballantyne is a Delaware corporation which was founded in 1932 and became a designer and manufacturer of
film projectors. Over the past 80 years, we have expanded our product lines and services to meet the needs of the ever-
changing and technologically-advancing theatre exhibition industry. Most recently, we entered the digital media sector
through an acquisition which enables us to serve the advertising, education and communication needs of retail, corporate,
and government sectors. Ballantyne went public in 1995; our shares are traded on the NYSE MKT under the symbol
“BTN”.



We conduct our operations through two primary business segments: Cinema and Digital Media. In 2015, the
Company renamed our segments from Systems Integration to Cinema and from Managed Services to Digital Media.
There was no impact on current or prior years to the individual components of these segments. Approximately 67%,
67%, and 82% of our sales were from the Cinema segment for the years ended 2015, 2014, and 2013 respectively.

Strategy

The Company elected a new Board of Directors at its 2015 annual meeting of shareholders on May 13, 2015.
Since that time, the newly composed Board has been reviewing and considering the company’s strategy going forward
and making changes in how the company views its investments and capital allocation decisions.

The Company currently has two business segments, Cinema and Digital Media. The Board expects to continue
to invest in these businesses and expects that these businesses will continue to generate free cash flow for the Company.

As of March 3, 2016, the Company has no long term debt, approximately $20.6 million in cash, and
approximately $5.6 in investments in other public companies.

The new Board has implemented a strategy focused on making optimal capital allocation decisions across all of
the company’s businesses and investments. The Board intends to continue to invest in and grow its Cinema and Digital
Media businesses. At the same time, the Board intends to consider and make investments in other industries that are
expected to produce higher returns on invested capital. This may involve investments in public companies or the
complete acquisitions of other businesses, which may be within or outside of the Cinema and Digital markets.
Investments in public companies may involve Ballantyne taking control positions or seeking board representation.

The Company’s investments in public companies currently include RELM Wireless Corporation (NYSE MKT:
RWC), a manufacturer of two-way wireless radio communications equipment, and 1347 Property Insurance Holdings,
Inc. (Nasdaq: PIH), a provider of property and casualty insurance in the State of Louisiana. As of March 3, 2016, the
Company currently holds approximately 7.81% of the outstanding stock of RELM Wireless Corporation and
approximately 4.47% of the outstanding stock of 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc.

In some cases, funds controlled by the Company’s affiliate Fundamental Global Investors, LLC may acquire
positions in the same public companies as the Company. Fundamental Global’s funds currently hold positions in both
RELM Wireless Corporation and 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc.

The Board also expects to consider investments and transactions in other areas that it believes are likely to
increase returns to shareholders, such as continued stock buybacks or monetizing physical or other assets held by the
company.

The Board expects that over time the Company will be further transformed into a holding company with
ownership of and investments in diverse businesses.

Operating Segments
Cinema
Overview

We provide a full range of products and services to the theatre exhibition industry from the design and
installation of new theatre exhibition systems and related equipment to complete film-to-digital theatre conversion
services. The systems include a wide spectrum of premier audio-visual products and accessories such as: digital
projectors, state of the art projection screens, servers and library management systems, menu boards, flat panel displays,
and sound systems.

We market and sell directly to theatre exhibitors, as well as through certain domestic and international Value
Added Resellers “VAR’s.” Over the course of our 80-year history, we have developed ongoing customer relationships
with a large portion of the theatre owners in the United States and a number of the major theatre owners internationally.
Our sales and marketing staff principally develop business by maintaining regular personal contact with our established
customer relationships, including conducting site visits. In our sales and marketing efforts, we emphasize our value
proposition of providing the broadest range of products and services delivered by one of the industry’s largest technical
service teams, which provides a significant resource to our clients in managing the complexities of digital technology in
the cinema exhibition industry. Our sales and marketing professionals have extensive experience with the Company’s
product lines and have long-term relationships throughout the industry.



Products

Screens — We manufacture multiple standard and large format 2D and 3D screens for cinema and special venue
applications through our ISO-certified manufacturing facility in Canada. There are certain digital 3D applications, such
as the technology by RealD, that require unique “silver” screens that we manufacture. In addition, we purchased
Peintures Elite, Inc. in 2013, the manufacturer of coatings that have been exclusive to our Company in the manufacture
of our screens. This relatively small acquisition positioned us to retain the exclusive rights to this coating and continue
producing our unique screens. We are constantly innovating to set new standards within the screen industry, and in 2013
we developed the new Premium HGA screen that diffuses light more evenly over the entire screen surface, thereby
reducing the formation of so-called “hot spots.”

Projectors — Through distribution agreements with NEC and BARCO, we distribute DLP Cinema projectors in
the Americas and Asia. Both manufacturers of the projectors use the DLP cinema technology from Texas Instruments.
NEC offers DLP Cinema projectors ranging from their NC900 projector for screens up to 31 feet wide to the NC3240S
which is a 4K projector designed for screens up to 105 feet wide. BARCO offers DLP Cinema projectors ranging from
their DP2K-10SX projector for screens up to 33 feet to the DP4K-32B cinema projector, which is an ultra-bright
enhanced 4K cinema projector for screens up to 105 feet.

Servers — Through a formal distribution agreement with GDC Technology (USA), LLC, we distribute GDC’s
line of digital cinema servers in North and South America. We also distribute their servers in certain other areas of the
world under less formal arrangements. In addition, we distribute servers for other server manufacturers, including those
manufactured by Dolby. Digital servers and the related integrated media block are used by our customers for the storage
and delivery of digital movie content.

Audio Systems — We distribute a range of state of the art digital audio systems, including surround and 3D
sound technologies from the following manufacturers: Dolby, Barco USL, JBL and QSC. Our technicians are certified by
each manufacturer to install, service and maintain these and other audio systems.

Additional Projection Products — We also manufacture or distribute certain third-party accessories, which
coupled with the cinema projector, server and integrated media block, can fully outfit and automate a projection booth.
The significant accessories include, but are not limited, to library management systems, automation products, pedestals,
3D accessories, lenses and lamps.

Markets

Cinema — Our non-exclusive distribution agreements with NEC and BARCO allow us to market digital
projectors in North and South America, including the Caribbean. In China we have distribution rights to sell NEC and
BARCO and can distribute NEC products in Hong Kong and certain other areas of Asia. We do not have any territorial
restrictions for any of our other products and services.

Competition

Digital Projection Equipment — The markets for our products in the cinema segment have been highly
competitive during the analog-to-digital cinema conversion. The primary competitive factors are price, product quality,
features and customer support. Competition in the digital cinema equipment market includes one other licensed OEM of
the Texas Instruments’ DLP cinema technology besides our partners NEC and BARCO: Christie Digital Systems. We
also compete with SONY, which uses its own 4K digital cinema technology.

Screens — While there are numerous screen manufacturing companies in the world, the primary competitor in
the worldwide cinema screen market is Harkness Screens. Competitive factors include product performance
characteristics, quality, availability and price.

Digital Media
Overview

The Company delivers solutions and services across two primary markets: digital out-of-home and cinema.
These markets are served through the capabilities that it has gained from the acquisition of Convergent in 2013 and from

Strong Technical Services (“STS”) respectively. While there is digital signage and cinema equipment sold within this
segment, the primary focus of this organization is providing solutions and services to our customers.



Solutions

Digital Signage — End-to-end digital signage solutions are at the core of our managed services offering, which
include media strategy, application development, content creation, system integration, hardware, software, content
distribution, management, network monitoring and field services. We primarily market our solutions to large businesses
in North America and Latin America that do not have the resources or expertise to create, manage and maintain their
digital signage system internally. These customers typically have complex solution requirements or require deployment
across many locations. Customers utilize digital signage to increase product sales, improve the consumer experience,
enhance their brand or inform their audience.

Enterprise Video — We provide video communication services and solutions including design, integration,
monitoring, maintenance and installation for the government and corporate markets. These solutions provide enterprises
with the infrastructure necessary to communicate, collaborate, train and educate employees. We also provide monitoring
and technical services that support free-to-guest solutions (such as in-room television) for customers in the hospitality,
healthcare, and other industries involving multi-dwelling units and communication solutions.

Products and Services

System Design and Integration within Digital Signage — We design and integrate systems to meet technical
framework and requirements for our clients. We are technology agnostic, integrating a number of third-party systems and
devices such as media players, servers, networking equipment and displays into our delivery platform. The design and
integration services include sourcing hardware, developing integration points, set-up, configuration and quality assurance
testing.

Content Creation — We provide creative services to digital signage clients that include media strategy, content
design and production. Our creative services team develops custom content to support the branding and marketing
initiatives of each client.

Content Management and Distribution — Content management is required to ensure accurate playback at the
right place and at the right time based on a number of factors such as geography, site characteristics, location within a site
or consumer demographics. We utilize both third-party and proprietary software platforms for the management and
distribution of content. Content is prepared, scheduled and centrally distributed from our facility. We utilize secure
virtual private network (“VPN”) connections across the Internet or the client network in accordance to specifications set
by the client’s IT department.

Network Operations Centers — Our NOCs, staffed by software engineers and systems techs, operate 24/7/365
and provide IT solutions to our customers to meet Service Level Agreements (“SLA”). We are able to monitor our
customers’ networked equipment remotely through a VPN, often providing proactive solutions to systems issues before
they cause system failures. Our remote services include systems monitoring and maintenance, software upgrades and
system repairs. By utilizing NOC personnel to solve customer issues whenever possible, we eliminate travel time and
expenses normally incurred by sending a technician onsite for repairs. Many issues that do not involve parts replacement
or physical contact with the hardware can be handled remotely using our remote assistance technologies.

Service & Maintenance — We supply digital installations and after-sale maintenance services. Our onsite
technicians work closely with our NOC staff to resolve systems issues that cannot be fixed remotely; they are certified to
install and service digital and audio equipment for all manufacturers, including the equipment of our competitors. We
offer cabling, wiring, installation and maintenance services for digital menu boards and other digital equipment on ad
hoc, as-needed basis. We also offer long-term contractual service packages for maintenance and repairs to a wide range
of installed digital equipment for customers including equipment originally installed by our competitors. These long-term
contractual service packages provide our Company with recurring revenue.

Markets

Digital Out-of-Home — The Digital Out-of-Home (“DOOH”) advertising market is a subset of the overall OOH
advertising market that includes in-store digital displays and interactive promotion kiosks. DOOH marketing campaigns
consist of a network of digital displays that are centrally managed and target both mobile and captive customers outside
the home. We are primarily focused on pursuing DOOH communication opportunities within the retail, banking,
entertainment, healthcare and corporate markets.

Enterprise Video Solutions — The Enterprise Video Solutions (“EVS”) market consists of customers seeking
corporate video communications, employee training and system monitoring solutions. We are primarily focused on
pursuing EVS opportunities within the hospitality, government, banking, healthcare and corporate markets.



Cinema — The cinema market consists of theatre exhibitors both domestically and internationally. The
Company’s foundation was built in the cinema exhibition industry and this market remains a key focus of our Company.
We market and sell our services directly to theatre owners and through dealers or VAR networks. Our sales and
marketing staff principally develop business by maintaining regular personal customer contact including conducting site
visits, while customer service and technical support functions are dispatched when needed.

Competition

There are many players in the Digital Out-of~-Home market who have expertise in integration. Some of the key
players include Diversified Media Group and Christie Digital.

The competition in the cinema service industry for installation, after-sale maintenance, and NOC services is
primarily driven by the two largest cinema service companies, the Company and Christie Digital Cinema, although there
are several other smaller scale providers in the cinema market.

Subsidiaries

As of December 31, 2015 we have six wholly-owned operational subsidiaries: Strong Technical Services, Inc.,

Strong/MDI Screen Systems, Inc., Strong Westrex, Inc., Strong Westrex (Beijing) Technology Inc., Convergent

Corporation and Convergent Media Systems Corporation:

e Strong Technical Services, Inc. performs service work for all of our products.

Strong/MDI Screen Systems, Inc. manufactures cinema screens and related accessories.
e Strong Westrex, Inc. is the holding company for our sales and service office in Hong Kong.

e Strong Westrex (Beijing) Technology Inc. a/k/a American West Beijing Technology Company, Ltd. is
located in Beijing, China and is our sales and service business for China.

e Convergent Corporation is a holding company of Convergent Media Systems Corporation.
e Convergent Media Systems Corporation performs all digital signage solutions and services.
Acquisitions

The discussion of our recent acquisitions is included under the heading “Acquisitions” in the section titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this report.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk Concentrations

The Company’s top ten customers accounted for approximately 42% of 2015 consolidated net revenues. Trade
accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 33% of net consolidated receivables at December
31, 2015.

Manufacturing

We manufacture cinema screens through Strong/MDI, our screen subsidiary in Joliette, Quebec, Canada. These
manufacturing operations consist of a 75,000 square-foot facility for the manufacture of cinema screen systems. These
facilities include expanded PVC welding operations with programmable automations, as well as two 90-foot high screen
coating towers with state of the art precision coating application software and painting systems. This world class ISO
certified operation has the capability of manufacturing multiple standard screens simultaneously to large format 2D and
3D screens for cinema and special venue applications. We are one of the few screen manufacturers in the world with
Silver Screen technologies capable of supporting RealD projections.

Quality Control

We believe that our quality control procedures and the quality standards for the products that we manufacture,
distribute or service have contributed significantly to our reputation for high performance and reliability. The inspection
of incoming materials and components as well as the testing of all of our products during various stages of the sales and
service cycle are key elements of this program.



Trademarks

We own or otherwise have rights to various trademarks and trade names used in conjunction with the sale of our
products. We believe our success will not be dependent upon trademark protection, but rather upon our scientific and
engineering capabilities and research and production techniques. We consider the following trademarks to be of value to
our business: Strong”™, Convergent™ and PRODOKOL™.

Employees

We employed 316 persons on a full-time basis at December 31, 2015. Of these employees, 70 positions were
considered manufacturing, 165 were service related and 81 were considered sales and administrative. We are not a party
to any collective bargaining agreement.

Seasonality
Generally, our business exhibits a minimal level of seasonality.
Regulation

We are subject to complex laws, rules and regulations affecting our domestic and international operations
relating to, for example, environmental, safety and health; exports and imports; bribery and corruption; tax; data privacy;
labor and employment; competition; and intellectual property ownership and infringement. Compliance with these laws,
rules and regulations may be onerous and expensive, and if we fail to comply or if we become subject to enforcement
activity, our ability to manufacture our products and operate our business could be restricted and we could be subject to
fines, penalties or other legal liability. Furthermore, should these laws, rules and regulations be amended or expanded, or
new ones enacted, we could incur materially greater compliance costs or restrictions on our ability to manufacture our
products and operate our business.

Some of these complex laws, rules and regulations — for example, those related to environmental, safety and
health requirements — may particularly affect us in the jurisdictions in which we manufacture products, especially if such
laws and regulations: require the use of abatement equipment beyond what we currently employ; require the addition or
elimination of a raw material or process to or from our current manufacturing processes; or impose costs, fees or
reporting requirements on the direct or indirect use of energy, or of materials or gases used or emitted into the
environment, in connection with the manufacture of our products. There can be no assurance that in all instances a
substitute for a prohibited raw material or process would be available, or be available at reasonable cost.

Executive Officers of the Company

D. Kyle Cerminara, age 38, assumed the responsibilities of Executive Chairman in September of 2015 and Chief
Executive Officer in November of 2015. Mr. Cerminara has served on the Board of Directors since February of 2015.

Ray F. Boegner, age 66, assumed the role of President of the Cinema business in November of 2015. Mr.
Boegner joined us in 1985 and has acted in various sales roles for our Company including as Senior Vice President since
1997.

Stephen L. Schilling, age 51, assumed the role of President of the Digital Media business in November of 2015.

Nathan D. Legband, age 36, has been Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since
September of 2014. Mr. Legband joined us in 2012 as the Corporate Controller.

Information available on Ballantyne Website

We make available free of charge on our website (www.strong-world.com), through a link to the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) website, our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. However, information posted on our website is not part of the Form 10-K. The
Board of Directors has adopted the following governance documents, which are also posted on our website:

e Code of Ethics
e Audit Committee Charter
e Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter

e Compensation Committee Charter



These corporate governance documents are also available in print to any stockholder upon request by writing to:

Corporate Secretary
Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
13710 FNB Parkway,

Suite 400 Omaha, NE 68154

Financial Information About Segments and Geographic Areas

The financial information about segments and geographic areas is included in Note 20 of our consolidated
financial statements in this report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business and financial performance are subject to various risks and uncertainties, some of which are beyond
our control. We discuss in this section some of the risk factors that, if they actually occurred, could materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. In that event, the trading price of our common
stock could decline and you may lose part or all of your investment. You should consider these risk factors in connection
with evaluating the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K because these factors
could cause our actual results and financial condition to differ materially from those projected in forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect
subsequent events or circumstances or the occurrence of unanticipated events.

If we are unable to expand our revenue streams to compensate for the lower demand for our digital cinema products
and installation services, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely
affected.

A significant portion of our revenue in recent years has been generated from the theatre exhibition industry’s
need for digital cinema equipment and services to support the industries transformation from film to digital equipment.
This transition required us to commit substantial resources to the process of retrofitting existing theatre complexes by
removing the film equipment and replacing it with digital equipment, and we experienced significant financial gains from
this work. With the completion of this digital conversion by North America theatre exhibitors, we will no longer be able
to rely on that income as a major source of our earnings. If we are unable to expand our revenue streams with other
products and services, our future growth would be significantly curtailed.

Interruptions of, or higher prices of, components from our suppliers may affect our results of operations and
financial performance.

A portion of our revenues are dependent on the distribution of products supplied by various key suppliers. If we
fail to maintain satisfactory relationships with our suppliers, or if our suppliers experience significant financial
difficulties, we could experience difficulty in obtaining needed goods and services. Some suppliers could also decide to
reduce inventories or raise prices to increase cash flow. The loss of any one or more of our suppliers could have an
adverse effect on our business, and we may be unable to secure alternative manufacturing arrangements. Even if we are
able to obtain alternative manufacturing arrangements, such arrangements may not be on terms similar to our current
arrangements or we may be forced to accept less favorable terms in order to secure a supplier as quickly as possible so as
to minimize the impact on our business operations. In addition, any required changes in our suppliers could cause delays
in our operations and increase our production costs and new suppliers may not be able to meet our production demands
as to volume, quality or timeliness.

The markets for our products and services are highly competitive and if market share is lost, we may be unable to
lower our cost structure quickly enough to offset the loss of revenue.

Within the cinema market, the domestic and international markets for our product lines are highly competitive,
evolving and subject to rapid technological and other changes. Our Digital Media business, in particular, is highly
dependent on technology. We expect the intensity of competition in each of these areas to continue in the future due to a
number of reasons including:

e Certain of the competitors for our digital equipment have longer operating histories and greater financial,
technical, marketing and other resources than we do, which, among other things, may permit them to adopt
aggressive pricing policies. As a result, we may suffer from pricing pressures that could adversely affect our
ability to generate revenues and our results of operations. Some of our competitors also have greater name
and brand recognition and a larger customer base than us.



e Some of our competitors are manufacturing their own digital equipment while we employ a distribution
business model through our distribution agreements with NEC, BARCO and certain other suppliers. As a
result, we may suffer from pricing pressures that could adversely affect our ability to generate revenues.

e Suppliers could decide to utilize their current sales force to supply their products directly to customers
rather than utilizing channels.

In addition, we face competition for consumer attention from other forms of entertainment. The other forms of
entertainment may be more attractive to consumers than those utilizing our technologies, which could harm our business,
prospects and operating results.

Due to these and other reasons, we must continue to enhance our technologies and our existing products and
services and introduce new high quality technologies, products and services to meet the wide variety of competitive
pressures that we face. If we are unable to compete successfully, our business, prospects and results of operations will be
materially adversely impacted.

Our investment strategy may not be successful, which could adversely impact our financial condition.

We intend to continue investing part of our cash balances in public companies. To date, our investments are
highly concentrated in two public companies — 1347 Property Insurance Holdings, Inc. (NASDAQ: PIH) and RELM
Wireless Corporation (NYSE MKT: RWC). These types of investments are more risky than holding our cash balances as
bank deposits or, for example, such conservative investments as treasury bonds or money market funds. There can be no
assurance that we will be able to maintain or enhance the value or the performance of the companies in which we have
invested or may invest in the future, or that we will achieve returns or benefits from these investments. We may lose all
or part of our investment relating to such companies if their value decreases as a result of their financial performance or
for any other reason. If our interests differ from those of other investors in companies over which we do not have control,
we may be unable to effect any change at those companies. We are not required to meet any diversification standards,
and our investments may continue to remain concentrated. If our investment strategy is not successful or we achieve less
than expected returns from these investments, it could have a material adverse effect on us. The Board of Directors may
also change our investment strategy at any time, and such changes could further increase our exposure, which could
adversely impact us.

If we are not able to develop and introduce enhancements and new features that achieve market acceptance or that
keep pace with technological developments, our business could be harmed.

We operate in a dynamic environment characterized by rapidly changing technologies and industry and legal
standards. Innovation is critical to our success. The introduction of new software solutions by our competitors, the market
acceptance of solutions based on new or alternative technologies, or the emergence of new industry standards could
render our platform obsolete. Our ability to compete successfully, attract new customers and increase revenues from
existing customers depends in part on our ability to enhance and improve our existing software platform and to identify
new software partners, which would allow us to continually introduce or acquire new features that are in demand by the
market that we serve. The success of any enhancement or new solution depends on several factors, including timely
completion and integration, adequate quality testing, introduction and market acceptance. Any new platform or feature
that we develop or acquire may not be introduced in a timely or cost-effective manner, may contain defects or may not
achieve the broad market acceptance necessary to generate significant revenues. If we are unable to anticipate, or timely
and successfully develop or acquire, new offerings or features, or enhance our existing platform to meet customer
requirements, our business and operating results will be adversely affected. Additionally, for technologies that are
acquired, we may not be able to successfully integrate or monetize the acquired technology at a rate that is consistent
with the market’s expectations, which could have a material adverse impact on us.

If we are unable to maintain our brand and reputation, our business, results of operations and prospects could be
materially harmed.

Our business, results of operations and prospects depend, in part, on maintaining and strengthening our brand
and reputation for providing high quality products and services. Reputational value is based in large part on perceptions.
Although reputations may take decades to build, any negative incidents can quickly erode trust and confidence,
particularly if they result in adverse publicity, governmental investigations or litigation. If problems with our products
cause operational disruption or other difficulties, or there are delays or other issues with the delivery of our products or
services, our brand and reputation could be diminished. Damage to our reputation could also arise from actual or
perceived legal violations, product safety issues, data security breaches, actual or perceived poor employee relations,
actual or perceived poor service, actual or perceived poor privacy practices, operational or sustainability issues, actual or
perceived ethical issues, or other events within or outside of our control that generate negative publicity with respect to
us. Any event that has the potential to negatively impact our reputation could lead to lost sales, loss of new opportunities,
and retention and recruiting difficulties. If we fail to promote and maintain our brand and reputation successfully, our
business, results of operations and prospects could be materially harmed.



Our sales cycle can be long and unpredictable, particularly with respect to large enterprises, which could harm our
business and operating results.

The timing of our sales is difficult to predict. Our sales efforts involve educating our customers, frequently at an
executive level, about the use, potential return on investment, technical capabilities, security and other benefits of our
solution. Customers often undertake a prolonged product-evaluation process, which frequently involves not only our
solutions but also those of our competitors. As we continue to target our sales efforts at large enterprise customers, we
will face greater costs, long sales cycles and less predictability in completing some of our sales. In this market segment,
the customer’s decision to subscribe to our solution is often an enterprise-wide decision and may require us to provide
even greater levels of education regarding the use and benefits of our solution and obtain support from multiple
departments. In addition, prospective enterprise customers may require customized features and functions unique to their
business process that may need acceptance testing related to those unique features. As a result of these factors, these sales
opportunities may require us to devote greater sales support, operational support and professional services resources to
individual customers, increasing costs and time required to complete sales and diverting our own sales and professional
services resources to a smaller number of larger transactions. The long and unpredictable nature of our sales cycle could
materially adversely impact our business and results of operations.

We are substantially dependent upon significant customers who could cease purchasing our products at any time.

The Company’s top ten customers accounted for approximately 42% of 2015 consolidated net revenues. Trade
accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 33% of net consolidated receivables at December
31, 2015. Most arrangements with these customers are made by purchase order and are terminable at will by either party.
A significant decrease or interruption in business from the Company’s significant customers could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

The Company has deferred tax assets that are subject to annual valuation testing, which assets may not be realized,
thus negatively impacting us.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. We
consider the scheduled reversal of taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment. A cumulative loss in a particular tax jurisdiction in recent years is a significant
piece of evidence with respect to the realizability that is difficult to overcome. Based on the available objective evidence,
including recent updates to the taxing jurisdictions generating income, we concluded that a valuation allowance of $9.1
million should be recorded against the Company’s U.S. and China tax jurisdiction deferred tax assets as of December 31,
2015. We face risks that our recorded deferred tax assets may not be realized, thus negatively impacting us.

Our business is subject to the economic and political risks of selling products in foreign countries.

Sales outside the United States (mainly cinema) continue to be significant, accounting for approximately 35% of
consolidated sales in fiscal 2015, which include $18.2 million of sales in China, as compared to 35% in 2014, of which
$14.0 million were generated in China. We expect that international sales will continue to be important to our business
for the foreseeable future. Foreign sales are subject to general political and economic risks, unanticipated or unfavorable
circumstances arising from host country laws or regulations, threats of war, terrorism or governmental instability,
currency controls, fluctuating exchange rates with respect to sales not denominated in U.S. dollars, changes in
import/export regulations, tariffs and freight rates, potential negative consequences from changes to taxation policies,
restrictions on the transfer of funds into or out of a country, and the disruption of operations from labor and political
disturbances. For example, certain risks and uncertainties of doing business in China are solely within the control of the
Chinese government, and there are also uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of laws and regulations
and the enforceability of contract rights in China. If we were unable to navigate foreign regulatory environment, or if we
were unable to enforce our contract rights in foreign countries, our business could be adversely impacted. Any of these
events could reduce our sales, limit the prices at which we can sell our products, interrupt our supply chain or otherwise
have an adverse effect on our operating performance.

In addition, a significant amount of our foreign sales are denominated in foreign currencies and amounted to
$25.8 million in 2015. To the extent that orders are denominated in foreign currencies, our reported sales and earnings
are subject to foreign exchange fluctuations. In addition, there can be no assurance that our remaining international
customers will continue to accept orders denominated in U.S. dollars. For those sales which are denominated in U.S.
dollars, a weakening in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar could have a material adverse impact on
us by increasing the effective price of our products in international markets. Certain areas of the world are also more cost
conscious than the U.S. market and there are instances where our products are priced higher than local manufacturers.
We are also exposed to foreign currency fluctuations between the Canadian and U.S. dollar due to our screen
manufacturing facility in Canada where a majority of their sales are denominated in the U.S. dollar while their expenses
are denominated in Canadian currency. We cannot predict the effects of exchange rate fluctuations upon our future
operating results because of the number of currencies involved, the variability of currency exposures, and the potential
volatility of currency exchange rates.
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Any of these factors could adversely affect our foreign activities and our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The risk of non-compliance with U.S. and foreign laws and regulations applicable to our international operations
could have a significant impact on our results of operations, financial condition and strategic objectives.

Our global operations subject us to regulation by U.S. federal and state laws and multiple foreign laws,
regulations and policies, which could result in conflicting legal requirements. These laws and regulations are complex,
change frequently, have tended to become more stringent over time and increase our cost of doing business. These laws
and regulations include import and export control, environmental, health and safety regulations, data privacy
requirements, international labor laws and work councils and anti-corruption and bribery laws such as the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act, the U.N. Convention Against Bribery and local laws prohibiting corrupt payments to government
officials. We are subject to the risk that we, our employees, our affiliated entities, contractors, agents or their respective
officers, directors, employees and agents may take action determined to be in violation of any of these laws. An actual or
alleged violation could result in substantial fines, sanctions, civil or criminal penalties, and debarment from government
contracts, curtailment of operations in certain jurisdictions, competitive or reputational harm, litigation or regulatory
action and other consequences that might adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and strategic
objectives.

A challenging global economic environment or a downturn in the markets that we serve could adversely affect our
operating results and stock price in a material manner.

The current issues in the global credit markets and weak worldwide economies may continue to negatively
impact the markets that we serve. This environment could serve to reduce demand for our products and adversely affect
our operating results. These economic conditions may also impact the financial condition of one or more of our key
suppliers, which could affect our ability to secure product to meet our customers’ demand. In addition a downturn in the
Cinema market could impact the valuation and collectability of certain long term receivables held by us. We could also
be adversely affected by such factors as changes in foreign currency rates and weak economic and political conditions in
each of the countries in which we sell our products.

We rely extensively on our information technology systems and are vulnerable to damage and interruption.

We rely on our information technology systems and infrastructure to process transactions, summarize results,
and manage our business, including maintaining client and supplier information. Additionally, we utilize third parties,
including cloud providers, to store, transfer and process data. Our information technology systems, as well as the systems
of our customers, suppliers and other partners, are vulnerable to outages and an increasing risk of continually evolving
deliberate intrusions to gain access to company sensitive information. Likewise, data security incidents and breaches by
employees and others with or without permitted access to our systems pose a risk that sensitive data may be exposed to
unauthorized persons or to the public. We may be unable to prevent outages or security breaches in our systems that
could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows, as well as our business reputation.

Any failure to maintain the security of information relating to our customers, employees, and suppliers, whether as a
result of cybersecurity attacks or otherwise, could expose us to litigation, government enforcement actions and costly
response measures, and could disrupt our operations and harm our reputation.

In connection with the sales and marketing of our products and services, we may from time to time transmit
confidential information. We also have access to, collect or maintain private or confidential information regarding our
customers, employees, and suppliers, as well as our business. Cyberattacks are rapidly evolving and becoming
increasingly sophisticated. It is possible that computer hackers and others might compromise our security measures, or
security measures of those parties that we do business with now or in the future, and obtain the personal information of
our customers, employees, and suppliers or our business information. A security breach of any kind, including physical
or electronic break-ins, computer viruses, and attacks by hackers, employees or others, could expose us to risks of data
loss, litigation, government enforcement actions and costly response measures, and could seriously disrupt our
operations. Any resulting negative publicity could significantly harm our reputation, which could cause us to lose market
share and have an adverse effect on our results of operations.
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If we fail to retain key members of management, or successfully integrate the new executives, our business may be
materially harmed.

We have recently made changes to key management positions. On November 24, 2015, the Board of Directors
appointed D. Kyle Cerminara as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, effective immediately. Mr. Cerminara has
been a member of the Board since February 2015 and has served as its Chairman since May 2015, assuming the role of
Executive Chairman in September 2015. On November 2, 2015, Stephen L. Schilling joined us as President of our
Digital Media business, and Ray F. Boegner was promoted to the newly created position of President of our Cinema
business. These changes in key management could create uncertainty among our employees, suppliers, and other
business partners and are resulting in changes to the strategic direction of our business, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on us. Our future success depends, in substantial part, on the efforts and abilities of our current
management team. If certain of these individuals were to leave unexpectedly, we could face difficulty in hiring qualified
successors and could experience a loss in productivity while any successor obtains the necessary training and experience.
Our loss of services of any of our senior executives, or any failure to effectively integrate new management into our
business processes, controls, systems and culture, could have a material adverse effect on us.

Our previous and any future acquisitions involve risks, including our inability to integrate successfully the new
businesses and our assumption of certain liabilities.

Our acquisitions of businesses and their respective assets involve the risks that the businesses and assets
acquired may prove to be less valuable than we expected and/or that we may assume unknown or unexpected liabilities,
costs and problems. Completing an acquisition and integrating an acquired business may also require a significant
diversion of management time and resources and could disrupt our business. Other companies that offer similar products
and services may be able to market and sell their products and services more cost-effectively than we can. If we make
one or more significant acquisitions in which the consideration consists of our capital stock, your equity interest in the
Company could be diluted, perhaps significantly. If we were to proceed with one or more significant acquisitions in
which the consideration included cash, we could be required to use a substantial portion of our available cash. If we are
unable to successfully integrate acquisitions, our business and financial condition could be materially adversely
impacted.

Failure to effectively utilize or successfully assert intellectual property rights could negatively impact us.

We own or otherwise have rights to various trademarks and trade names used in conjunction with the sale of our
products, the most significant of which are Strong™, Convergent™ and PRODOKOL™. We rely on trademark laws to
protect these intellectual property rights. We cannot assure that these intellectual property rights will be effectively
utilized or, if necessary, successfully asserted. There is a risk that we will not be able to obtain and perfect our own
intellectual property rights, or, where appropriate, license from others intellectual property rights necessary to support
new product introductions. Our intellectual property rights, and any additional rights we may obtain in the future, may be
invalidated, circumvented or challenged in the future. Our failure to perfect or successfully assert intellectual property
rights could harm our competitive position and could negatively impact us.

Natural disasters and other catastrophic events beyond our control could adversely affect our business operations and
financial performance.

The occurrence of one or more natural disasters, such as fires, hurricanes, tornados, tsunamis, floods and
earthquakes; geo-political events, such as civil unrest in a country in which our suppliers are located or terrorist or
military activities disrupting transportation, communication or utility systems; or other highly disruptive events, such as
nuclear accidents, pandemics, unusual weather conditions or cyberattacks, could adversely affect our operations and
financial performance. Such events could result, among other things, in operational disruptions, physical damage to or
destruction or disruption of one or more of our properties or properties used by third parties in connection with the supply
of products or services to us, the lack of an adequate workforce in parts or all of our operations, and communications and
transportation disruptions. These factors could also cause consumer confidence and spending to decrease or result in
increased volatility in the United States and global financial markets and economy. Such occurrences could have a
material adverse effect on us and could also have indirect consequences such as increases in the costs of insurance if they
result in significant loss of property or other insurable damage.

The insurance that we maintain may not fully cover all potential exposures.

We maintain property, business interruption and casualty insurance but such insurance may not cover all risks
associated with the hazards of our business and is subject to limitations, including deductibles and maximum liabilities
covered. We are potentially at risk if one or more of our insurance carriers fail. Additionally, severe disruptions in the
domestic and global financial markets could adversely impact the ratings and survival of some insurers. In the future, we
may not be able to obtain coverage at current levels, and our premiums may increase significantly on coverage that we
maintain.
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Entities affiliated with Fundamental Global Investors, LLC, whose interests may differ from the interests of our other
stockholders, have significant influence over the Company.

The interests of Fundamental Global Investors, LLC and its affiliates may differ from the interests of our other
stockholders. Fundamental Global Investors, LLC and its affiliates hold approximately 22.07% of the Company’s
outstanding shares of common stock as of December 31, 2015. Mr. Cerminara, the manager of Fundamental Global
Investors, LLC, serves as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. As a result of its ownership position and Mr.
Cerminara’s board and management positions with the Company, Fundamental Global has the ability to exert significant
influence over our policies and affairs, including the power to impact the election of our directors, appointment of our
management and approval of any action requiring a shareholder vote, such as amendments to our certificate of
incorporation, bylaws, significant stock issuances, mergers and asset sales. For example, pursuant to the settlement
agreement entered into with Fundamental Global Investors, LLC and certain of its affiliates on April 21, 2015, the
Company expanded its Board of Directors to nine directors and nominated five director candidates from Fundamental
Global’s slate of directors, who were elected at the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Fundamental
Global may have interests that differ from those of our other stockholders and may vote in a way with which our other
stockholders disagree and which may be adverse to their interests. Fundamental Global’s significant ownership may also
have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change of control of the Company, could deprive our stockholders
of an opportunity to receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of the Company and might ultimately
affect the market price of our common stock.

Our stock price is vulnerable to significant fluctuations.

The trading price of our common stock has been highly volatile in the past and could be subject to significant
fluctuations in response to variations in quarterly operating results, general conditions in the industries in which we
operate and other factors. In addition, the stock market is subject to price and volume fluctuations affecting the market
price for the stock of many companies generally, which fluctuations often are unrelated to operating performance.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

The Company has no unresolved staff comments to report pursuant to this item.
Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters and NOC are located at 13710 FNB Parkway, Omaha, Nebraska, where we lease office space.
The premises are used for offices and operating the NOC. The lease expires in April 2023. In addition, our subsidiaries
owned or leased the following facilities as of December 31, 2015.

e  QOur Strong/MDI Screen Systems, Inc. subsidiary owns a 75,000 square-foot manufacturing plant in Joliette,

Quebec, Canada. The facilities are used for offices, manufacturing, assembly and distribution of the cinema

and other screens. We believe this facility is well maintained and adequate for future needs.

e Our Strong Westrex (Beijing) Trading Inc. subsidiary leases office space in Beijing. The lease expires July
2016.

e We also lease office space in Hong Kong. The lease expires July 2016.
e In addition, the Company leases office space in Mooresville, NC. The lease expires in November of 2020.

e OQOur Convergent Media Systems Corporation subsidiary owns a 43,000 square-foot office facility in
Alpharetta, Georgia. The facilities are used for offices and operating the NOC. Convergent also leases our
distribution facility which is located at 975 Old Norcross Road, Suite D, Lawrenceville, Georgia, where we
lease approximately 40,000 square feet. The lease expires in April 2017. The premises are used for
distribution of certain products. In addition, Convergent leases two office facilities in Toronto, Ontario,
Canada. These leases expire in March 2018 and October 2019.

We do not anticipate any difficulty in retaining occupancy of any leased facilities, either by renewing leases
prior to expiration or replacing them with equivalent leased facilities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
In the ordinary course of our business operations, we are involved, from time to time, in certain legal disputes.

No such disputes, individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material effect on our business or financial
condition.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
PART I1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Our common stock is listed and traded on the NYSE MKT under the symbol “BTN”. The following table sets
forth the high and low per share sale price for the common stock as reported by the NYSE MKT.

High Low
2015 First QUATTET.......cc.eovveeieciieeie et $ 505 % 4.01
Second QUATET .......covvviieeeciiieie e 5.13 4.00
Third QUArter ..........eeeieiiiiieieiie e 4.88 342
Fourth Quarter ...........ccooovvviiieiiiiecc e 4.87 4.24
2014 First QUATLEr......ceeueeeriieeeieeieieetiese e $ 515 $ 4.46
Second QUATET .......covvvveeeiriiiie e 4.89 3.76
Third QUArter ........ceeeiieiiiiie e 4.69 3.65
Fourth Quarter ...........ccooeviiiiiiiiiii e 4.50 3.79

According to the records of our transfer agent, we had 129 stockholders of record of our common stock on
March 3, 2015. Because brokers and other institutions hold many of our shares on behalf of stockholders, we are unable
to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders. The last reported per share sale price for
the common stock on March 3, 2015 was $4.05. We had 14,207,646 shares of common stock outstanding on March 3,
2015.

Stock Repurchases

On August 20, 2015, we announced that our Board of Directors adopted a stock repurchase program authorizing
the repurchase of up to 700,000 shares of our outstanding Common Stock pursuant to a plan adopted under Rule 10b5-1
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended). Repurchases during the quarter ended December 31, 2015 are
reflected in the following table.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (1)

Maximum
Number of
Total Shares (or
Number of  approximate
Shares dollar value)
Purchased that May
as Yet
Part of Be
Total Average Publicly Purchased
Number of Price Announced Under the
Shares Paid per Plans or Plans or
Period Purchased Share Programs Programs
October 1 — October 31, 2015........ 1,000 $ 4.54 1,000 698,800
November 1 — November 30, 2015. 800 §$ 441 800 698,000
December 1 — December 31, 2015 . 1,000 $ 4.58 1,000 697,000

Total ..o 2,800 2,800

(1) On August 20, 2015, the Company announced that its Board of Directors adopted a stock repurchase
program authorizing the Company to repurchase of up to 700,000 shares of the Company’s outstanding Common Stock.
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Unregistered Issuances of Equity Securities

On November 22, 2015, the Compensation Committee awarded Mr. Schilling an inducement grant of stock
options to purchase 30,000 shares of our common stock outside of our existing stockholders approved equity plans. This
inducement grant was made pursuant to an exemption from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, has an exercise price of $4.33 per share, and was fully vested on the grant date.

Dividend Policy

We intend to retain our earnings to assist in financing our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends
on our common stock in the foreseeable future. The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company are also
subject to the discretion of the Board. Any determination by the Board as to the payment of dividends in the future will
depend upon, among other things, business conditions, our financial condition and capital requirements, as well as any
other factors deemed relevant by the Board. We have not paid cash dividends since we went public in 1995.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares Ballantyne’s cumulative total stockholder return over the last five fiscal years
with the cumulative total returns of the New York Stock Exchange Composite Index (“NYSE”), the Russell 2000 Index
and the Research Data Group, Inc. (“RDG”) SmallCap Technology Index. The graph assumes $100 was invested on
December 31, 2010, and assumes reinvestment of all dividends.

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Ballantyne Strong, Inc., the Russell 2000 Index, the NYSE Composite Index,
and the RDG SmallCap Technology Index
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---©--- NYSE Composite —#— RDG SmallCap Technology
*$100 invested on 12/31/10 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
Copyright© 2016 Russell Investment Group. All rights reserved.
12 /10 12 /11 12 /12 12 /13 12 /14 12 /15
Ballantyne Strong, Inc...........c.ccooveviiniiiniininnne. 100.00 52.64 42.47 59.59 53.28 59.33
Russell 2000...........ccccoooiiiinienieiieeceee e 100.00 95.82 11149 154.78 16235 155.18
NYSE Composite............ccccovvieiiiieinieeniiieieeeeeenns 100.00 96.16 111.53 140.85 15035 144.21
RDG SmallCap Technology .............ccccccocevnrnnenne. 100.00 77.67 73.84 102.73 87.90 73.20

Copyright © 2016 Russell Investment Group. All rights reserved.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, and the
selected balance sheet data at December 31, 2015 and 2014, are derived from, and are qualified by reference to, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
selected statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the balance sheet data at
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, are derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included herein. The
Company has made acquisitions during the five years covered by the selected statement financial data. See Note 3 to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of operations data

Net TEVENUE ....ocoeeeveeeeeeeeeeenen. $ 92,829 $ 95,086 $103,610 $169,084 $ 184,433
Gross Profit .......oeeveveereervrevennnnn. $ 17,587 $ 18,160 $ 16,845 $ 22594 $ 30,213
Net earnings (1088) .......ccevevenen. $ (17,467) $ 4 $ 163 $ 5,542 $ 10,347
Net earnings (loss) per share........
Basic .coooveiieiee $ (124 § 0.00 $ 0.01 $ 039 $ 0.72
Diluted .....cooooeveeiiiieeieenen. $ (1249 $ 000 $ o001 $ 039 $ 071
Balance sheet data
Working capital ..............ooveeee. $ 28,179 $ 44,730 §$ 48,661 $ 56,897 $ 50,504
Total aSSetS......oovveveveereieeeeeneennns $ 66,864 $ 89,355 $ 95444 $ 99,546 $113,456
Total debt ......c.cceeveveeeriieiennee. $ — 3 — 8 — 3 — 3 —
Stockholders’ equity ................... $ 44,512 $ 65462 $§ 66456 $ 66916 $ 63,223

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report. Management’s discussion and analysis contains not only historical
information, but also forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Statements that are not historical are forward-looking and reflect
expectations for future Company performance. For these statements, the Company claims the protection of the safe
harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to those
discussed in the “Risk Factors” section contained in Item 1A. Given the risks and uncertainties, readers should not place
undue reliance on any forward-looking statement and should recognize that the statements are predictions of future
results which may not occur as anticipated. Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward-
looking statements and from historical results, due to the risks and uncertainties described herein, as well as others not
now anticipated. New risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for management to predict all such risk
factors, nor can it assess the impact of all such factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination
of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Except
as required by law, the Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect actual results or
changes in factors or assumptions affecting such forward-looking statements.

Overview

The Company designs, integrates, and installs technology solutions for a broad range of applications; develops
and delivers out-of-home messaging, advertising and communications; manufactures projection screens; and provides
managed services including monitoring of networked equipment to our customers. We add value through our design,
engineering, manufacturing excellence and customer service. We focus on the cinema, retail, financial and government
markets. We have two primary operating segments: Cinema and Digital Media. In 2015, the Company renamed our
segments from Systems Integration to Cinema and from Managed Services to Digital Media. There was no impact on
current or prior years to the individual components of these segments. The Cinema Segment provides a full range of
product solutions primarily for the theatre exhibition industry, including a wide spectrum of premier audio-visual
products and accessories such as digital projectors, state of the art projection screens, servers, library management
systems and menu boards, flat panel displays, and sound systems. The Digital Media Segment delivers solutions and
services across two primary markets: digital out-of-home and cinema. These markets are served through the capabilities
that the Company has gained from the acquisition of Convergent in 2013 and from Strong Technical Services (“STS”)
respectively. While there is digital signage and cinema equipment sold within this segment, the primary focus of this
segment is providing solutions and services to our customers.
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Our segments were determined based on the manner in which management organizes segments for making
operating decisions and assessing performance. Approximately 67% of fiscal year 2015 revenues were from cinema and
approximately 33% were from digital media. Additional information related to our reporting segments can be found in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Acquisitions

On October 1, 2013, the Company acquired Convergent Corporation (formerly a subsidiary of Sony Electronics
Inc.) and its wholly owned subsidiary Convergent Media Systems (“Convergent”, “CMS”) for approximately $17.4
million in cash. CMS provides digital technologies for out-of-home messaging, advertising and communication (the
Digital Out-of~-Home or DOOH market) and Enterprise Video Solutions (EVS), which provides enterprises with the
infrastructure necessary for communication, collaboration, training and education of employees. CMS operates from its
offices in the United States and Canada and has customers in North America. Approximately $0.2 million of the purchase
price was allocated to amortizable other intangibles.

On September 13, 2013, the Company acquired Peintures Elite, Inc. for $1.7 million in cash. Elite is a
manufacturer of paint and lacquer products and has been the primary provider of paint for our screen manufacturing
business. Approximately $1.2 million of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill and $0.6 million was allocated to
amortizable other intangibles.

Results of Operations:

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the percentage of net revenues represented by certain
items reflected in our consolidated statements of operations.

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
NEETEVENUE «..coneiniriirieit et et 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenues .... 81.1 80.9 83.7
GTrOSS Profit ceeeeeeeieeiiieeiie e 18.9 19.1 16.3
Selling and administrative expenses(1) 23.8 21.0 16.1
Income (loss) from operations (2).........ccceeecvveerveennrenns (5.3) (1.9 0.1
Net earnings (108S) (3)...eeceveeeuieeeiiieiieciieeie e (18.8) 0.0 0.2

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2015, selling and administrative expenses included $2.1 million (2.2% of net
revenues) of severance, facility consolidation, proxy contest, and intangible impairment charges. For the year ended
December 31, 2013, selling and administrative expenses included $1.5 million (1.4% of net revenues) of severance
and site closure charges.

(2) For the year ended December 31, 2015, loss from operations included $2.1 million (2.2% of net revenues) of
severance, facility consolidation, proxy contest, and intangible impairment. For the year ended December 31, 2013,
income from operations included $1.5 million (1.4% of net revenues) of severance and site closure charges.

(3) For the year ended December 31, 2015, net loss included $11.2 million (12.1% of net revenues) of severance, facility
consolidation, proxy contest, intangible impairment charges, and income tax related to valuation allowances. For the
year ended December 31, 2013, net earnings included $1.5 million (1.4% of net revenues) of severance and site
closure charges of $1.5 million.

Restructuring Activities

In connection with its strategic planning process, as well as the Company’s ongoing plans to improve efficiency
and effectiveness of its operations, the Company initiated plans in the second quarter of 2015 to reduce headcount and
more efficiently utilize real estate assets. Included in administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015, are
$0.6 million and $0.2 million of severance and lease termination costs the Company expects to incur as part of this
restructuring plan. The Company expects that the strategic initiative will be completed in the third quarter of 2016.

In connection with the integration of the 2013 CMS acquisition, as well as the Company’s ongoing plans to
improve efficiency and effectiveness of its operations, the Company initiated plans in the fourth quarter of 2013 to reduce
headcount and move the Company’s warehouse from Omaha, Nebraska to Georgia. In 2013, the Company recorded $1.5
million in severance costs it expected to incur as part of the integration of CMS and for site closure of the Omaha
warehouse. The restructuring initiative was completed in 2015.
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2015 Compared to 2014
Revenues

Net revenues during the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased 2.4% to $92.8 million from $95.1 million in
the year ended December 31, 2014.

2015 2014
(in thousands)
CHNEIMA. ..ottt et et $ 62,199 $ 63,781
Digital Media ....ccvieiiiiieiiiiciie ettt 31,837 32,494
Total SEZMENt TEVENUES ......vieeeieeeiiieeeeieiiieeetieeeieeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeas 94,036 96,275
ElMINALIONS ...ttt tee e e e eeesae e enaaeenereas (1,207) (1,189)
TOtAl NEL TEVETUES ... ieeeeieeee et eaee e eaee e eaaeeeeenns $ 92,829 $ 95,086

Cinema

Sales of cinema products and services decreased 2.5% to $62.2 million in 2015 from $63.8 million in 2014.
Sales of digital cinema products and services decreased by $4.2 million as the industry conversion to digital projection
equipment becomes complete. This was partially offset by an increase in screen sales of $2.7 million.

Digital Media

Sales of digital media products and services decreased 2.0% to $31.8 million in 2015 from $32.5 million in
2014. Sales of products and services related to digital signage as well as content creation, management and distribution
decreased $0.9 million. This was partially offset by an increase of $0.4 million in digital cinema service from an increase
in on-demand services.

Foreign Revenues

Sales outside the United States (primarily from the cinema segment) decreased 1.5% to $32.2 million in 2015
from $32.7 million in 2014. Decreased sales in Asia, Canada and South America were offset by increased sales in China,
Europe, and Mexico. Export sales are sensitive to the timing of the digital cinema conversions in these countries and
normal replacement cycles. Export sales are sensitive to worldwide economic and political conditions that lead to
volatility. Certain areas of the world are more cost conscious than the U.S. market and there are instances where our
products are priced higher than products of local manufacturers, making it more difficult to generate sufficient profit to
justify selling into these regions. Additionally, foreign exchange rates and excise taxes sometimes make it difficult to
market our products overseas at reasonable selling prices.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit decreased 3.2% to $17.6 million in 2015 from $18.2 million in 2014 and as a percent
of total revenue decreased to 18.9% in 2015 from 19.1% in 2014.

Gross profit in the cinema segment increased to $12.7 million from $12.2 million in 2014 and increased as a
percentage of cinema revenues to 20.3% from 19.1% a year-ago. The increase in gross margin dollars and the increase in
gross margin as a percentage of sales was driven by product mix and partially offset by inventory reserve increases.
Digital equipment sales, which carry lower margins, declined to make up a smaller percentage of total sales.

Gross profit in the digital media segment amounted to $4.9 million or 15.5% as a percentage of revenues in
2015 compared to $6.0 million or 18.4% as a percentage of revenues in 2014. The decrease in gross margin dollars and
gross margin as a percentage of sales was driven by inventory reserve increases, product mix and lower utilization of
field technicians.

Selling Expenses
Selling expenses decreased 23.7% to $5.5 million in 2015 from $7.2 million in 2014 and as a percentage of

revenues decreased to 5.9% from 7.6% a year-ago. The decrease in selling expenses was due to lower employee
headcount from the restructuring initiatives initiated in the second quarter of 2015.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased 30.3% to $16.6 million in 2015 from $12.7 million in 2014 and amounted to
17.7% and 13.4% of revenues, respectively. Included in administrative expenses are severance, facility consolidation,
proxy contest, and intangible impairment charges of $2.1 million in 2015. Remaining administrative expenses increased
to $14.5 million or 15.5% of revenues from $12.7 million or 13.4% of revenues in 2014. The increase is due to increases
in bad debt expense, depreciation, and other general corporate costs. The increase was partially offset by a reduction in
employee related expenses in 2015.

Segment Operating Income

We generated operating income in the cinema segment of $7.3 million in 2015 compared to $6.1 million in
2014. This increase was driven by product mix. Digital equipment sales, which carry lower margins, declined to make up
a smaller percentage of total sales, and screen sales, which carry higher margins, increased to make up a larger
percentage of total sales.

The digital media segment generated an operating loss of $1.0 million in 2015 compared to minimal operating
loss in 2014. The decrease was driven by inventory reserve increases, product mix, and lower utilization of field
technicians.

Other Financial Items

Total other income was $0.4 million in 2015 compared to $1.3 million in 2014. The decrease is due to $1.6
million of expense related to fair value adjustments and $0.3 million decrease in net interest income, offset by $1.0
million net gains on foreign currency transactions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. The Company considers the scheduled reversal of taxable
temporary differences, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. A
cumulative loss in a particular tax jurisdiction in recent years is a significant piece of evidence with respect to the
realizability that is difficult to overcome. Based on the available objective evidence including recent updates to the taxing
jurisdictions generating income, the Company concluded that a valuation allowance of $9.1 million should be recorded
against the Company’s U.S. and China tax jurisdiction deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015. No valuation
allowance was recorded in 2014.

We recorded income tax expense of approximately $13.0 million in 2015 compared to income tax benefit of
$0.5 million in 2014. During 2015, the Company had accumulated earnings of $22.0 million in excess of what was
determined to be permanently reinvested in Canada and China resulting in income taxes of $8.1 million. The effective tax
rate differs from the statutory rates primarily as a result of the valuation allowance recorded against the Company’s U.S.
and China tax jurisdiction deferred tax assets and differing foreign and U.S. tax rates applied to respective pre-tax
earnings by tax jurisdiction.

For the reasons outlined herein, we generated losses of $17.5 million and $1.24 basic and diluted losses per
share in 2015, compared to essentially break even with basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.00 in 2014.

2014 Compared to 2013
Revenues

Net revenues during the year ended December 31, 2014 decreased 8.2% to $95.1 million from $103.6 million in
the year ended December 31, 2013.

2014 2013
(in thousands)
(0311 1 1T PRt $ 63,781 $ 85,451
Digital Media.......ceieiiiiiiiiiiie e 32,494 19,105
Total segment revenues .. 96,275 104,556
Eliminations....................... (1,189) (946)
TOtal NEL TEVEIUES ... eeeeieee ettt etaae e $ 95,086 $ 103,610
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Cinema

Sales of Cinema products and services decreased 25.4% to $63.8 million in 2014 from $85.5 million in 2013.
Sales of digital cinema products and services decreased by $22.8 million as the industry conversion to digital projection
equipment continues to wind down as expected. In addition sales of lighting products decreased $2.7 million. This was
partially offset by an increase in screen sales of $3.0 million.

Digital Media

Sales of digital media products and services increased 70.2% to $32.5 million in 2014 from $19.1 million in
2013. This reflects twelve months of ownership of Convergent in 2014 versus three months in 2013, accounting for $11.2
million of the increase. In addition we had an increase of $2.2 million in digital cinema service due to increased on-
demand service and NOC contract revenue.

Foreign Revenues

Sales outside the United States (primarily from the cinema segment) decreased to $32.9 million in 2014 from
$36.3 million in 2013. This was driven by decreased sales in China and South America offset by increased sales in
Canada and Mexico. Export sales fluctuations in these markets are reflective of highly competitive environments
combined with sensitivity to the timing of the digital cinema rollout in these countries as well as diminishing film
equipment sales. Export sales are also sensitive to worldwide economic and political conditions that lead to volatility in
the market.

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit increased 7.8% to $18.2 million in 2014 from $16.8 million in 2013 and as a percent
of total revenue increased to 19.1% in 2014 from 16.3% in 2013.

Gross profit in the cinema segment decreased to $12.2 million from $12.7 million in 2013 but increased as a
percentage of cinema revenues to 19.1% from 14.8% a year-ago. The decrease in gross profit was driven by lower
revenues in digital equipment sales as the digital roll out continued to wind down as expected. However, gross margin as
a percentage of revenue increased as digital equipment sales, which carry lower margins, declined to make up a smaller
percentage of total sales.

Gross profit in the digital media segment amounted to $6.0 million or 18.4% as a percentage of revenues in
2014 compared to $4.2 million or 21.9% as a percentage of revenues in 2013. Twelve months of ownership of CMS in
2014 versus three months of ownership in 2013 caused the increase, which was partially offset by decreases in lower
revenues for cinema service. However, gross margin as a percentage of digital media revenues decreased primarily due to
the CMS acquisition as CMS media solutions carry a lower gross margin than other offerings in the digital media
segment as the revenue stream includes sale of equipment that carries lower margin.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased 82.5% to $7.2 million in 2014 from $4.0 million in 2013 and as a percentage of
revenues increased to 7.6% from 3.8% a year-ago. The increase in selling expenses is due to the ownership of CMS for
12 months in 2014 versus the three months of ownership in 2013. In addition, the company has invested in growing and
developing the sales and business development functions that were not in place at the date of acquisition of CMS.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased 0.3% to $12.7 million in 2014 from $12.8 million in 2013 and amounted to
13.4% and 12.3% of revenues, respectively. Included in administrative expenses are restructuring charges of $1.5 million
in 2013. Remaining administrative expenses increased to $12.7 million or 13.4% of revenues from $11.3 million or
10.9% of revenues. The increase is due to the ownership of CMS for 12 months in 2014 versus the three months of
ownership in 2013, coupled with the decrease in revenue. The increase was partially offset by a reduction in incentive
based compensation in 2014.

Segment Operating Income
We generated operating income in the cinema segment of $6.1 million in 2014 compared to $7.9 million in

2013. This decrease was driven by the revenues from the sale of digital cinema products and services as the digital roll-
out continued to wind down as expected.
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The digital media segment generated minimal operating loss in 2014 compared to operating income of $1.1
million in 2013. The decrease is due to increased costs associated with the ownership of CMS for 12 months in 2014
versus three months of ownership in 2013.

Other Financial Items

Interest income increased $0.3 million in 2014 to $0.7 million compared to $0.4 million in 2013. This increase
is primarily due to a $0.2 million increase in interest income from the notes receivable. Additionally interest income on
the lease receivables acquired as part of the acquisition of CMS increased $0.1 million compared to 2013 due to the
ownership of CMS for 12 months in 2014 versus the 3 months of ownership in 2013. Other income, net of $0.6 million in
2014 and $0.5 million in 2013 reflects the impact of exchange gains and losses due primarily to the U.S. dollar
fluctuating against the Canadian dollar from year-to-year.

We recorded income tax benefit of approximately $0.5 million in 2014 compared to income tax expense of $0.8
million in 2013. The effective tax rate (calculated as a ratio of income tax expense to pretax earnings, inclusive of equity
method investment income (losses)) was approximately 99.1% for 2014 and 82.9% for 2013. During 2014, the Company
had accumulated earnings of $4.8 million in excess of what was determined to be permanently reinvested in Canada
resulting in income taxes of $0.4 million. The effective tax rate differs from the statutory rates primarily as a result of
differing foreign and U.S. tax rates applied to respective pre-tax earnings by tax jurisdiction.

For the reasons outlined herein, we were essentially break even with and basic and diluted earnings per share of
$0.00 in 2014, compared to net earnings of $0.2 million and basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.01 in 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the past several years, we have met our working capital and capital resource needs from either our
operating or investing cash flows or a combination of both. We ended fiscal year 2015 with total cash and cash
equivalents of $22.1 million compared to $22.5 million at December 31, 2014. The Company believes that our existing
sources of liquidity, including cash and cash equivalents and operating cash flow will be sufficient to meet our projected
capital needs for the foreseeable future.

The Company was party to a $20 million Revolving Credit Agreement and Note (collectively, the “Credit
Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo”). The Credit Agreement expired June 30, 2015. Since
inception of the agreement, no amounts had been borrowed on the Credit Agreement.

As of December 31, 2015, $19.3 million of the $22.1 million in cash and cash equivalents was held by our
foreign subsidiaries. If these funds are needed for our operations in the U.S., we would be required to pay U.S. income
taxes and foreign withholding taxes on a portion of these funds when repatriated back to the U.S. During 2015 the
Company determined that $14.7 million of the cash in Canada and $4.1 million of the cash in China would no longer be
considered permanently reinvested and would be available for other corporate needs.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities consist of net income adjusted for non-cash items, including depreciation
and amortization, deferred taxes, and the effect of working capital changes.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $8.0 million in 2015, which included a $17.5 million net loss, plus
non-cash charges (benefits) for gain on assets, deferred tax expense, depreciation and amortization, reserve provisions,
impairments, fair value adjustments and non-cash stock compensation totaling $18.6 million. Changes in working capital
increased cash from operating activities by $6.8 million. This is primarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable and
inventories, partially offset by decreases in accounts payable and customer deposits and deferred revenue. Accounts
receivable decreased $8.0 million due to decreased sales and due to improved accounts receivable collection results.
Inventories decreased $1.9 million due to focused efforts to carry only required and necessary inventory levels. Accounts
payable balances decreased $1.6 million due to payments made to vendors during the year for purchases made to fulfill
orders at the end of 2014. Customer deposits and deferred revenue decreased $1.4 million as revenue was recognized
related to deposits and deferred revenue, and is consistent with the decrease in the Company’s revenue in 2015 compared
to 2014.

Net cash used in operating activities was $3.7 million in 2014, which included breakeven net income, plus non-
cash charges (benefits) for gain on assets, deferred tax expense, depreciation and amortization, reserve provisions and
non-cash stock compensation totaling $2.2 million. Changes in working capital decreased cash from operating activities
by $1.4 million. This is primarily due to a decrease in the balance of accounts payable and accrued expenses, partially
offset by increases in customer deposits/deferred revenue. Accounts payable balances decreased $3.7 million due to
timing of payment for inventory purchases. Accrued expenses decreased $1.9 million due to the decrease in accruals
related to compensation and benefits in addition to severance. This was partially offset by a decrease in customer
deposits/deferred revenue of $1.2 million, which is consistent with the decrease in the Company’s revenues in 2014
compared to 2013.
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Net cash provided by operating activities was $8.5 million in 2013, which included net income of $0.2 million,
plus non-cash charges (benefits) for gain on assets, deferred tax expense, depreciation and amortization, reserve
provisions and non-cash stock compensation totaling $4.3 million. Changes in working capital benefitted cash from
operating activities by $4.0 million. This is primarily due to a decrease in the balance of accounts receivables and other
current assets, as well as accruals and timing of tax deposits partially offset by decreases in accounts payable and
customer deposits/deferred revenue. Accounts receivable balances decreased $8.9 million due to the lower sales volume
in the fourth quarter 2013 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2012. Accounts payable decreased $4.8 million as the
Company paid for fourth quarter 2012 inventory purchases. Customer deposits/deferred revenue decreased $3.3 million,
consistent with the decrease in the Company’s revenues in 2013 compared to 2012.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $6.2 million in 2015. This included $6.0 million of investments in
equity securities and $0.4 million of capital expenditures, offset by $0.2 million from proceeds from the sale of assets.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $1.9 million in 2014 primarily due to capital expenditures.

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $19.3 million in 2013. Cash of $1.7 million and $17.4 million
was used for the acquisitions of Elite and CMS, respectively, which was partially offset by $0.4 million of cash acquired.
Capital expenditures in 2013 amounted to $0.5 million.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing in 2015, 2014 and 2013 was negligible and is primarily related to
capital lease payments.

The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates decreased cash and cash equivalents by $2.0 million, $0.7
million, and $0.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.

Transactions with Related and Certain Other Parties

Pursuant to the proxy contest settlement agreement entered into with Fundamental Global and certain of its
affiliates on April 21, 2015, the Company expanded its Board of Directors to nine directors and nominated five director
candidates from Fundamental Global’s slate of directors (Messrs. D. Kyle Cerminara, William J. Gerber, Charles T.
Lanktree, Robert J. Marino and Robert J. Roschman), who were elected at the 2015 Annual Meeting. Fundamental
Global and its affiliates hold approximately 22.07% of the Company’s outstanding shares of common stock as of
December 31, 2015. Mr. Cerminara, the Chief Executive Officer, Co-Founder and Partner of Fundamental Global
Investors, LLC, serves as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The Company reimbursed Fundamental Global for
its expenses incurred in connection with the proxy contest and settlement agreement in the amount of $178,415. The
independent members of the Board of Directors approved the reimbursement.

The Company’s purchase of the equity securities that comprise its marketable securities and equity method
investments were made in companies in which Fundamental Global has an ownership interest. The independent members
of the Board of Directors approved these purchases and the Company made no payments to Fundamental Global related
to these purchases.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk Concentrations

The Company’s top ten customers accounted for approximately 42% of 2015 consolidated net revenues. Trade
accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 33% of net consolidated receivables at December
31, 2015. While the Company believes its relationships with such customers are stable, most arrangements are made by
purchase order and are terminable at will by either party. A significant decrease or interruption in business from the
Company’s significant customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
and results of operations. The Company could also be adversely affected by such factors as changes in foreign currency
rates and weak economic and political conditions in each of the countries in which the Company sells its products.

Financial instruments that potentially expose us to a concentration of credit risk principally consist of accounts
receivable and notes receivable. We sell products to a large number of customers in many different geographic regions.
To minimize credit concentration risk, we perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition or
use letters of credit.
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Hedging and Trading Activities

The Company’s primary exposure to foreign currency fluctuations pertains to its subsidiaries in Canada and
China. In certain instances, the Company may enter into foreign exchange contracts to manage a portion of this risk. For
the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company recorded approximately $0.1 million of realized net losses associated
with these contracts in its consolidated statement of operations. The Company had no hedging activities in 2015.

We do not have any trading activities that include non-exchange traded contracts at fair value.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations

Our off balance sheet arrangements consist principally of leasing various assets under operating leases. The
future estimated payments under these arrangements are summarized below along with our other contractual obligations:

One to
Contractual Total Less than Three Three to More than
Obligations Payments One Year Years Five Years Five Years
(In thousands)
Postretirement benefits.............. $ 125 § 18 30§ 21§ 56
Capital [€ases........ccceeeveevueenrens $ 988 319 538 131 —
Operating leases...........cccceeeueeee. $ 2,825 622 849 718 636
Contractual cash obligations.. $ 3938 §% 959 $ 1,417 $ 870 $ 692

There were no other material contractual obligations other than inventory and property, plant and equipment
purchases in the ordinary course of business.

Inflation

We believe that the relatively moderate rates of inflation in recent years have not had a significant impact on our
net revenues or profitability. Historically, we have been able to offset any inflationary effects by either increasing prices
or improving cost efficiencies.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to the consolidated financial statements for a
description of recently issued accounting pronouncements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
General

The following accounting policies involve judgments and estimates used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based
on assumptions about matters that are uncertain at the time the estimate is made, and if different estimates that reasonably
could have been used, or changes in the accounting estimates that are reasonably likely to occur periodically, could
materially impact the consolidated financial statements.

Our accounting policies are discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
Management believes the following critical accounting policies reflect its more significant estimates and assumptions
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when all of the following circumstances are satisfied:

e  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;

e  Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered,;

e  The seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable;

e  Collectability is reasonably assured.

23



The Company recognizes revenue when these criteria have been met and when title and risk of loss transfers to
the customer. If an arrangement involves multiple deliverables, the items are considered separate units of accounting if
the items have value on a stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of their fair values. Revenues
from the arrangement are allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their objectively determined fair value.
For services, revenue is recognized when the services have been rendered. Revenues from service and support contracts
are deferred and recognized as earned ratably over the service coverage periods. Unbilled revenue represents revenue
recognized in accordance with the Company’s revenue recognition policy for which the invoice had not been processed
and sent to the customer. Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of the product; however, there are certain
instances where revenue is deferred and recognized upon delivery or customer acceptance of the product as the Company
legally retains the risk of loss on these transactions until such time. Estimates used in the recognition of revenues and
cost of revenues include, but are not limited to, estimates for product warranties, price allowances and product returns.

Costs related to revenues are recognized in the same period in which the specific revenues are recorded.
Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are reported in revenue. Shipping and handling costs incurred by the
Company are included in cost of sales. Estimates used in the recognition of revenues and cost of revenues include, but
are not limited to, estimates for product warranties, price allowances and product returns.

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Our policy is to evaluate all inventory
quantities for amounts on-hand that are potentially in excess of estimated usage requirements, and to write down any
excess quantities to estimated net realizable value. Inherent in the estimates of net realizable values are management’s
estimates related to customer demand and the development of new technology, which could make our theatre and digital
media products obsolete, among other items.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. We use an estimate of our annual effective
rate at each interim period based on the facts and circumstances at the time while the actual effective rate is calculated at
year-end. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. The Company considers the scheduled reversal of taxable
temporary differences, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. A
cumulative loss in a particular tax jurisdiction in recent years is a significant piece of evidence with respect to the
realizability that is difficult to overcome. Based on the available objective evidence including recent updates to the taxing
jurisdictions generating income, the Company concluded that a valuation allowance of $9.1 million should be recorded
against the Company’s U.S. and China tax jurisdiction deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015.

Business Combinations

The Company uses the acquisition method in accounting for acquired businesses. Under the acquisition method,
the financial statements reflect the operations of an acquired business starting from the completion of the acquisition. The
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their respective estimated fair values at the date of the acquisition.
Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. Significant judgment is often required in estimating the fair value of assets acquired, particularly intangible
assets. As a result, in the case of significant acquisitions we normally obtain the assistance of third-party valuation
specialists in estimating fair values of tangible and intangible assets. The fair value estimates are based on available
historical information and on expectations and assumptions about the future, considering the perspective of marketplace
participants. While management believes those expectations and assumptions are reasonable, they are inherently
uncertain. Unanticipated market or macroeconomic events and circumstances may occur, which could affect the accuracy
or validity of the estimates and assumptions.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The principal market risks affecting us are exposure to interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We
market our products throughout the United States and the world. As a result, we could be adversely affected by such
factors as changes in foreign currency rates and weak economic conditions. As a majority of our sales are currently
denominated in U.S. dollars, a strengthening of the dollar can and sometimes has made our products less competitive in
foreign markets.

Interest Rates—Interest rate risks from our interest related accounts such as our postretirement obligations are
not deemed significant. We currently have long-term notes receivables bearing interest rates of 15% which are recorded
at fair value. A change in long-term interest rates for comparable types of instruments would have the effect of us
recording changes in fair value through our statement of operations.

Foreign Exchange—Exposures to transactions denominated in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency are primarily related to our China and Canadian subsidiaries. Fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies
create exposures, which can adversely affect our results of operations. From time to time, as market conditions indicate,
we will enter into foreign currency contracts to manage the risks associated with forecasted transactions. A portion of our
cash in the China and Canadian subsidiaries is denominated in foreign currencies, where fluctuations in exchange rates
will impact our cash balances in U.S. dollar terms. A hypothetical 10% change in the value of the U.S. dollar would
impact our reported cash balance by approximately $1.0 million.

Equity Price Risk—We are exposed to equity price risk related to certain of our investments in equity securities.
At December 31, 2015, our equity securities aggregated $6.1 million, of which $2.1 million represented marketable
securities that are reported at fair value, and $4.0 million accounted for using the equity-method. A change in the equity
price of the marketable securities or equity method investments would result in a change in the fair value or economic
value, respectively, of such securities.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ballantyne Strong, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2015. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited financial statement
Schedule II. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 7, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 7, 2016
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Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
($ and shares in thousands except par values)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIvalents ...........cccceeeviiiriiieeiiiennicee e
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$1,927 in 2015 and $679 in 2014)......ccvieieeieeiieiierie e
INVENTOTIES, NEL......iiiiiiiiieiiiie ettt
Recoverable INCOME tAXES........uvvvvvieiiiieeiie e ieceieeeiee e e e ee e seaaaaeas
Other CUITENE ASSCES ......vuvvviiiiiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeciie e e eeeeeeeeeeeeerarrerraeae s
Total CUITENT ASSELS ....vvvevveviiiieiee et e e
Property, plant and equipment, Net.........c..ccoceviiiiiriiiniiiniinicieee
Marketable SECUTILIES. .. ....eieeeeeeeeiciriiereeeeeeeee e e rreeeeeeeeeeeeeeenanaens
Equity method inVeStments. ...........ceevveierieieniie e e
Intangible aSSets, NEL .......cueeerieieiiiie et et e
GOOAWILL....oo it
INOLES TECEIVADIE ....vvviviiiieie et
Deferred INCOME tAXES ........coeeviiiiiiiiieiiee et e e e e e eeaaeaees
OFNET @SSELS....ciieeiiiiieieieeeeeee e eceee e e ee e e e e e e et trrerreeeeeeeeeeeseeenanaens
TOtal ASSELS......ciiiiiieieeeeee e e

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ......eviiieieieiie et
ACCIUESA EXPEIISES ....vvvieeiieenieenieestie et ete et enteesttesieesnbeeeeesaeeseeeneee
Customer deposits/deferred revenue...........c.eeeeeerniieeriieiniieenineennee
Income tax payable..........coouiiiiieiiieiiniiee e
Total current liabilities. .........eerreirriieiinie e
Deferred TEVEINUE. ....coiuuiiiiiie ittt e e e
Deferred INCOME taXES .. ..ouveeeereeriieeriieeeriieee e et eiee e eee e e
Other accrued expenses, net of current portion.............ccceeeveveereeeennee.
Total THabilities. ...ceeveieeeiiiiieie et
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 1,000 shares,
NONE OULSTANAING ....cvveiviiiiiiiiiiiicii e
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; authorized 25,000 shares;
issued 16,925 and 16,809 shares at December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014, respectively; 14,191 and 14,078 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively ...............
Additional paid-in capital ..........cccceevieeiieeiiiie e
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation............cccoceeevvieinieiiiiiceniecniceeeen
Postretirement benefit obligation............cccveeevieeiniieenieeniieeneeenn
Retained arnings ........covueeriuieeriiieiiiie e e et

Less 2,734 and 2,731 of common shares in treasury, at December

31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, at COSt ......uverirrrriieiiieeriieeeiie e
Total stockholders’ eqUity.........cccoeeueeerieeiiiieerie e
Total liabilities and stockholders’” equity ..........cccooveerieenvereennneenn

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

$ 22,070 $ 22,491
11,359 20,266

9,693 14,108

85 1,255

2,739 2,956

45,946 61,076

11,768 13,914

2,101 —

4,001 —

235 1,168

863 1,029

1,669 2,985

— 7,736

281 1,447

$ 66,864 $ 89,355
$ 7,369 $ 9,039
4,100 4,366

5,007 5,473

1,291 1,009

17,767 19,887

1,288 2,230

1,716 —

1,581 1,776

22,352 23,893

169 168

39,157 38,657
(6,229) (2,325)

74 139

29,595 47,062

62,766 83,701
(18,254) (18,239)

44,512 65,462

$ 66,864 § 89,355

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Net Product SALES........ccvieeevieeiiie et eree e eeeerae e $ 69,250 $ 70,360 $ 88,067
NEt SETVICE TEVEINUES. ......ovvvivieiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et eneeeeeeeas 23,579 24,726 15,543
Total NEL FEVENUES ...t 92,829 95,086 103,610
Cost of products SOId..........eeeevieeriieeriiee e 60,358 60,106 75,171
COSE OF SEIVICES ..vvveeeeeiie ettt ee e et eaae e e 14,884 16,820 11,594
Total COSt Of TEVENUES....uvvvviviiieiieiie e 75,242 76,926 86,765
GTOSS PIOFIL cueeieeiiie ettt 17,587 18,160 16,845
Selling and administrative expenses:
SEIINEG. ¢ttt st ettt 5,522 7,235 3,965
AdMINISIAtIVE. ....veeeieeiiii e 16,594 12,740 12,773
Total selling and administrative eXpenses...........e.ovveeeuveeennenns 22,116 19,975 16,738
Gain (loss) on sale or disposal of @SSets ........ccuerveveerriieneeieeinens (425) 10 (8)
Income (10sS) from OPErations............ccvveeevreerveeenreeeireenneenns (4,954) (1,805) 99
Equity in income (loss) equity method investments........................ 96 78 (25)
Other income:
INterest INCOME......ccueiuiiniiiriiriiit ettt 368 705 352
INEEIESt EXPEISE....eeruviietieeeiieeitieestie e ettt et ee et e et ee e e eeaeeeneens (42) (48) 2)
Fair value adjustment for notes receivable............cccceeeveeeneennnee. (1,595) — —
Foreign currency transaction gain (10SS)..........ccveervuveenveeniieennns 1,612 611 850
Other iNCOMEe (EXPENSE), NEL ..ovvveerrrreeiiieiiieeireeeeeeeeireeereeeenens 49 (10) (323)
Total other INCOME........ccuvveiiiiiiiieieee e 392 1,258 877
Earnings (loss) before income taxes .........ccceevvveervreeiveennneenns (4,466) (469) 951
Income tax benefit (€XPense) .........ceevveervieieriierrieeeiiieeiiee e (13,001) 465 (788)
Net €arnings (10SS) ....veeevureeiieerreeeiieeeiieeetieerrieeereeeareenreeees $ (17,467) $ 4 3 163
Basic earnings (108S) per share.............ocvevvevirviiieiineeiiee e $ (1.24) $ 000 $ 0.01
Diluted earnings (10ss) per share............cccuvevvieeiiiiviiieeciieeiee e, $ (1.24) § 0.00 $ 0.01
Weighted average shares outstanding:
BaSIC .ttt e 14,135 14,061 13,999
DiIULEd ... 14,135 14,061 14,031

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Net €arnings (I0SS) ..eeevvveeerieeiiieeirieeitieerieeeieeeeiieesreesaeeesbaeeees $ (17,467) $ @ 3 163
Adjustment to postretirement benefit obligation:

Prior Service Credit .......vvvieeeiueieeeeiiiieee e (24) (24) 302

Net actuarial 10SS......ccovvviiiiiiiiiie e (41) (27) (158)

Total adjustment to postretirement benefit obligation.............. (65) (629 144

Currency translation adjustment:

Unrealized net change arising during period.............ccccceeeeeennnee. (3,904) (1,366) (1,228)
Other comprehensive 10SS........ueeeeeirieiiiiieecee e, (3,969) (1,417) (1,084)
CompPrenensive LOSS ....oc.eeiveeriierieiiiiiieieerie st $ (21,436) $ (1,421) S (921)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2012...

Net INCOME......eeurerrerireeireenneeane.
Net other comprehensive loss .....

Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Issuance of 14 shares of common stock

under the restricted stock plans

Issuance of 1 shares of common stock
under the employees stock purchase

Net other comprehensive loss .....

Issuance of 68 shares of common stock

under the restricted stock plans

Share-based compensation expense .......
Balance at December 31, 2014....
Net 10SS..eeeeiireiiiieeieecie e

Net other comprehensive loss.....
Treasury share purchase of 3 shares.......

Issuance of 116 shares of common stock

under the restricted stock plans

Share-based compensation expense .......
Balance at December 31, 2015....

($ and shares in thousands)
Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Paid-In  Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Stock  Income (Loss) Equity

............ $ 167 $§ 37,770 $ 46,903 $ (18,239) $ 315 $ 66,916
........... — — 163 — — 163
........... — — — — (1,084) (1,084)
— 461 — — — 461
........... 167 38,231 47,066  (18,239) (769) 66,456
........... — — 4) — — “4)
........... — — — — (1,417) (1,417)
........... 1 ) — — — —
_ 427 — — — 427
........... 168 38,657 47,062  (18,239) (2,186) 65,462
........... — —  (17,467) — — (17,467)
........... — — — — (3,969) (3,969)
— — — (15) — (15)
........... 1 ) — — — —
— 501 — — — 501
........... $ 169 $ 39,157 $ 29,595 § (18,254)$ (6,155) $ 44,512

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net earnings (10SS).....cuueerueeeriieiiie et

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Provision for doubtful accounts...........c.ceeveevueereeieeienncennn
Provision for obsolete INVENtory..........cccoeceveeivieeenieeeriieenneeann
Provision for Warranty ............ccceeeeveeeviieeeiieeniie e eie e
Depreciation and amortization ............cc.ceceeeceeenieieeneeneennn
Impairment of intan@ibles ..........cooceeirieiiiiiiiii e
Fair value adjustment to notes receivable ...........c.cccoeeeeeneen.
Equity in (income) loss of equity method investments...........
Unrealized gain on marketable securities............ccceeeeuveennnn.
Gain loss on forward CONtracts ...........cevveeevieerireeneeeeiieeeneann
Loss on disposal or transfer of assets..........ccocceeevveeeriieenneene
Deferred INCOME taXES ......eevuvirueeiieiieiieieeie e
Share-based compensation €Xpense..........ceeeveeeeuveerrueeenveennne

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions:

Accounts receivable, unbilled and notes receivable................
INVENTOTICS. . eviiiiiiie e e
Other CUITENt @SSELS ....eeeevivririeeiiiiireeeiieeeeeeirreeeeeirreeeseeeneees
Accounts payable.........cueeiiieeriiiiiiie e
ACCTUCA EXPEINISES ...vveeeeieeie et eeiieeeiiee et ee e ee e e e eaeaeeieeeas
Customer deposits/deferred revenue..........cccoeeeeeveeieeeeeennnenn.
CUIrent iNCOME TAXES ...eeeeivurreeeeiirieeeeeeireeeeeeireeeeeeireeeeeeaaeeens
OthEr SSELS ....uvvviiiieiieie ettt e

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ............

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired...........ccccccvvereeene
Purchase of equity SECUITtIES.......vevrvvieeiieeiiieeiiie e
Capital eXpenditires...........ocevveerreeniienieneeniere e
Proceeds from sales 0f @SSets .......c..oeceerieiieiieeniieiiiinieiecee

Net cash used in investing activities ...........ccccveevuveeerreeennne.

Cash flows from financing activities:

Purchase of treasury StoCK .........c.covvieriiieeiiieeiieceiie e
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan..............cccceeeee
Payments on capital lease obligations ...........cccceeeviieineeenieenne
Excess tax benefits from share-based arrangements...................

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash

CQUIVAIEILS L

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents .............cccoceeeene
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.............cc.cceeueennee.

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.........c..cccccovvveiiennninrnnnne.

Supplemental disclosure of cash paid for:

INtETCST .. ot
INCOME TaAXES....coeiiiiiiiiiiiieieeee e e

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing
activities:

Capital lease obligations for property and equipment.................

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
(17,467) $ @) 3 163
1,379 92 273
1,970 (200) (111)
800 — 430
2,332 1,924 1,511
638 — —
1,595 — —
(96) (78) 25
(118) — —
— 145 380
425 (10) 8
9,193 (4,533) 1,339
501 427 461
8,044 757 8,932
1,893 1,149 689
(166) 8 1,826
(1,588) (3,732) (4,813)
(1,477) (1,904) (235)
(1,359) 1,229 (3,327)
1,620 1,145 685
(137) (87) 268
7,982 (3,672) 8,504
— — (18,810)
(5,983) — —
(442) (1,982) (529)
220 57 5
(6,205) (1,925) (19,334)
(15) — —
— — 4
(200) (14) —
12 7) 16
(203) 1) 20
(1,995) (682) (567)
@21) (6,300) (11,377)
22,491 28,791 40,168
22,070 $ 22491 S 28,791
45 3 34 3 27
2272 S 1,724 3 961
752§ 310§ —



Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Basis of Presentation
Business Description

Ballantyne Strong, Inc. (“Ballantyne” or the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries Strong Westrex, Inc., Strong Technical Services, Inc., Strong/MDI Screen Systems, Inc., Strong Westrex
(Beijing) Technology Inc., Convergent Corporation and Convergent Media Systems Corporation (“Convergent” or
“CMS”) designs, integrates, and installs technology solutions for a broad range of applications; develops and delivers
out-of-home messaging, advertising and communications; manufactures projection screens; and provides managed
services including monitoring of networked equipment to our customers.

The Company’s products are distributed to the retail, financial, government and cinema markets throughout the
world.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all majority owned and
controlled domestic and foreign subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results and changes in facts and
circumstances may alter such estimates and affect results of operations and financial position in future periods.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when all of the following circumstances are satisfied:
e Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
e Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered;
e The seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable;
e Collectability is reasonably assured.

The Company recognizes revenue when these criteria have been met and when title and risk of loss transfers to
the customer. If an arrangement involves multiple deliverables, the items are considered separate units of accounting if
the items have value on a stand-alone basis and there is objective and reliable evidence of their fair values. Revenues
from the arrangement are allocated to the separate units of accounting based on their objectively determined fair value.
For services, revenue is recognized when the services have been rendered. Revenues from service and support contracts
are deferred and recognized as earned ratably over the service coverage periods. Unbilled revenue represents revenue
recognized in accordance with the Company’s revenue recognition policy for which the invoice had not been processed
and sent to the customer. Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of the product; however, there are certain
instances where revenue is deferred and recognized upon delivery or customer acceptance of the product as the Company
legally retains the risk of loss on these transactions until such time. Estimates used in the recognition of revenues and
cost of revenues include, but are not limited to, estimates for product warranties, price allowances and product returns.

Costs related to revenues are recognized in the same period in which the specific revenues are recorded.
Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are reported in revenue. Shipping and handling costs incurred by the
Company are included in cost of sales. Estimates used in the recognition of revenues and cost of revenues include, but
are not limited to, estimates for product warranties, price allowances and product returns.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

All short-term, highly liquid financial instruments are classified as cash equivalents in the consolidated balance
sheets and statements of cash flows. Generally, these instruments have maturities of three months or less from date of
purchase.

Marketable Securities

The Company’s marketable securities are comprised of investments in the common stock of a publicly traded
company. Changes in fair value, based on the market price of the investee’s stock are recognized currently in other
income in the consolidated statement of operations. The Company has elected the fair value option to account for the
investment to more appropriately recognize the value of this investment in our consolidated financial statements.
Marketable securities at fair value were as follows:

December 31, 2015
Gross Gross Estimated
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)
Marketable Securities.........coceeevvvuvveerennnes $ 1983 $ 118 $ — $ 2,101

Equity Method Investments

In December 2015, the Company acquired 7.8% ownership in RELM Wireless Corp, (RELM) for $4.0 million.
RELM is a publicly traded company that designs, manufactures and markets two-way land mobile radios, repeaters, base
stations, and related components and subsystems. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer is member of the board of
directors of RELM, and controls entities that, when combined with the Company’s ownership in RELM, own greater
than 20% of RELM, providing the Company with significant influence over RELM, but not controlling interest. As a
result of this significant influence, the Company accounts for its investment in RELM under the equity method. The
Company’s carrying value for RELM was $4.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and the Company’s equity in earnings
of RELM were not significant in 2015. Based on quoted market prices, the market value of the Company’s ownership in
RELM was $4.2 million at December 31, 2015.

The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an investment may not be recoverable. The Company did not record any impairments related to its
investments in 2015, 2014, or 2013.

Accounts, Financing and Notes Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company
determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on several factors, including overall customer credit quality,
historical write-off experience and a specific analysis that projects the ultimate collectability of the account. As such,
these factors may change over time causing the reserve level and bad debt expense to adjust accordingly.

Beginning in October 1, 2013, with our acquisition of CMS in our digital media segment, sales-type lease
revenue arrangements are included in services revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The arrangements
are primarily related to sales of digital displays and have original lease terms ranging from 3 to 5 years. For sales-
type/finance leases, the Company records an asset at lease inception. This asset is recorded at the aggregate future
minimum lease payments, estimated residual value of the leased equipment, and deferred incremental direct costs less
unearned income. Income is recognized over the life of the lease to approximate a level rate of return on the net
investment. Residual values, which are reviewed periodically, represent the estimated amount that the Company expects
to receive at lease termination from the disposition of the leased equipment. Actual residual values realized could differ
from these estimates. Declines in estimated residual value that are deemed other-than-temporary are recognized in the
period in which the declines occur. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations and provides an allowance for
potential credit losses against the portion of financing receivables which is estimated to be uncollectible based on
historical experience, current economic conditions, and management’s evaluation of outstanding financing receivables.
These factors may change over time causing the reserve level to adjust accordingly. There is currently no allowance for
credit losses as management believes the entire balance will be collectible. The effective rate on these is 3.25%.

Notes receivable are recorded at estimated fair value at December 31, 2015 and accrue interest at 15%. The
Company estimates allowances for doubtful accounts based on the Company’s best estimates of the amount of probable
credit losses pertaining to the notes receivables, based on ongoing monitoring of the counterparty’s financial position and
results of operations.
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Past due accounts are written off for accounts, financing and notes receivable when our efforts have been
unsuccessful in collecting amounts due.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and include appropriate elements of
material, labor and manufacturing overhead. Inventory balances are net of reserves of slow moving or obsolete inventory
based on management’s review of inventories on hand compared to estimated future usage and sales, technological
changes and product pricing.

Digital projection equipment is provided to potential customers for consignment and demonstration purposes
under customer use agreements. Revenues are subsequently recorded in accordance with the Company’s normal revenue
recognition policies. Consignment inventory is reviewed for impairment by comparing the inventory to the estimated
future usage and sales. Digital equipment on consignment amounted to approximately $0.1 million and $0.3 million at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Business Combinations

The Company uses the acquisition method in accounting for acquired businesses. Under the acquisition method,
the financial statements reflect the operations of an acquired business starting from the completion of the acquisition. The
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their respective estimated fair values at the date of the acquisition.
Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. Significant judgment is often required in estimating the fair value of assets acquired, particularly intangible
assets. As a result, in the case of significant acquisitions the Company normally obtains the assistance of third-party
valuation specialists in estimating fair values of tangible and intangible assets. The fair value estimates are based on
available historical information and on expectations and assumptions about the future, considering the perspective of
marketplace participants. While management believes those expectations and assumptions are reasonable, they are
inherently uncertain. Unanticipated market or macroeconomic events and circumstances may occur, which could affect
the accuracy or validity of the estimates and assumptions.

Intangible Assets

The Company’s amortizable intangibles consist of trademarks, customer relationships, software and product
formulation. The Company evaluates its intangible assets for impairment when there is evidence that events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Intangible assets with definite
lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values. Significant judgments
and assumptions are required in the impairment evaluations. See footnote 7 for further information regarding impairment
on intangible assets taken in 2015.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment at least annually, or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may be impaired. Significant judgment is involved in
determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred. The Company may consider indicators such as deterioration in
general economic conditions, adverse changes in the markets in which the reporting unit operates, increases in input costs
that have negative effects on earnings and cash flows, or a trend of negative or declining cash flows over multiple
periods, among others. The fair value that could be realized in an actual transaction may differ from that used to evaluate
the impairment of goodwill.

The Company may first review for goodwill impairment by assessing qualitative factors to determine whether
any impairment may exist. If the Company believes, as a result of the qualitative assessment, that it is more likely than
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, a quantitative two-step test is required;
otherwise, no further testing is required. However, the Company also may elect not to perform the qualitative assessment
and, instead, proceed directly to the quantitative impairment test. Under the first step of the quantitative test, the fair
value of each reporting unit is compared with its carrying value (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting
unit exceeds its carrying value, step two is not performed. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying
value, an indication of goodwill impairment exists for the reporting unit and step two of the quantitative impairment test
(measurement) is performed. Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of
the reporting unit’s goodwill over the fair value of that goodwill. The fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating
the fair value of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation and the residual fair value after this
allocation is the fair value of the reporting unit goodwill.

Goodwill at December 31, 2015 was recorded in connection with the acquisition of Peintures Elite, Inc. in 2013.
A qualitative assessment was performed for the year ended December 31, 2015 and it was determined no events had
occurred since the acquisition that would indicate an impairment was more likely than not.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Significant expenditures for the replacement or expansion of property, plant and equipment are capitalized.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using
the straight-line method. For financial reporting purposes, assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of 20
years for buildings and improvements, life of the related lease for leasehold improvements, 3 to 10 years for machinery
and equipment, 7 years for furniture and fixtures and 3 years for computers and accessories. The Company generally uses
accelerated methods of depreciation for income tax purposes. The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The
recoverability of property, plant and equipment is based on management’s estimates of future undiscounted cash flows
and these estimates may vary due to a number of factors, some of which may be outside of management’s control. To the
extent that the Company is unable to achieve management’s forecasts of future income, it may become necessary to
record impairment losses for any excess of the net book value of property, plant and equipment over their fair value. The
Company did not record any impairments related to property, plant and equipment in 2015, 2014, or 2013.

The Company incurs maintenance costs on all of its major equipment. Repair and maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. The Company uses an estimate of its annual
effective rate at each interim period based on the facts and circumstances at the time while the actual effective rate is
calculated at year-end. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. In assessing whether the deferred tax assets are realizable management considers
whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company’s uncertain tax positions are evaluated in a two-step process, whereby 1) the Company
determines whether it is more likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained based on the technical merits of the
position and 2) for those tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold, the Company would
recognize the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement
with the related tax authority. The Company accrues interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in the
statements of income as income tax expense.

Other Taxes

Sales taxes assessed by governmental authorities including sales, use, and excise taxes are on a net basis and
therefore the presentation of these taxes is excluded from revenues and is shown as a liability on the balance sheet until
remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities.
Research and Development

Research and development related costs are charged to operations in the period incurred. Such costs amounted
to approximately $0.1 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to approximately $0.6 million, $0.5
million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Fair Value of Financial and Derivative Instruments
The Company follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued authoritative guidance, which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value

measurements. As defined in the FASB guidance, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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The FASB guidance establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency
of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. Inputs refers broadly to the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. The categorization within
the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

e Level ] — inputs to the valuation techniques are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
e Level 2— inputs to the valuation techniques are other than quoted prices but are observable for the assets

or liabilities, either directly or indirectly
e Level 3 — inputs to the valuation techniques are unobservable for the assets or liabilities

The following tables present the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value based upon the
level within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Fair Values Measured on a Recurring Basis at December 31, 2015:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,070 $ — $ — $ 22,070
Marketable SeCUrIties..........ccoovveeveeeeerieneerieeriereeene. $ 2,101  § — $ — $ 2,101
Notes receivable.......ccovveveeieeieieieiiiiiciiieeeee e $ — $ — $ 1,669 §$ 1,669

Fair Values Measured on a Recurring Basis at December 31, 2014:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccoevvriireieeneennen. $ 22491 $ — $ — $ 22,491
Notes 1eCeivable ........coovvevviiieie e $ — $ — $ 2,985 §$ 2,985

Quantitative information about the Company’s level 3 fair value measurements at December 31, 2015 is set forth below:

$ in thousands Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable input Range
Note receivable .........c......... $ 1,669 Discounted cash flow Probability of default 55%
Discount rate 18%

The notes receivable are recorded at estimated fair value at December 31, 2015 and accrue interest at a rate of
15% per annum. During 2015, new information became available regarding the ability of the debtor to repay the interest
on the notes receivable, which caused the Company to change the probability of default used in the discounted cash flow
valuation from 0% to 55%. This resulted in a reduction to the fair value of notes receivable of $1.6 million during the
year ended December 31, 2015.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Company’s note receivable are
discount rate and probability of default. Significant increases (decreases) in any of these inputs in isolation would result
in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.

The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balance of the Company’s notes receivable fair value:

2015 2014
(in thousands)

Notes receivable balance, beginning of period............cccveeveveenee. $ 2,985 $ 2,497
Interest iNCOMe acCrued.........c.veeeuiieviieeiiiieeiieeiee e e 279 488
Fair value adjustment............ccccceeviieiiiiriieieniie e (1,595) —

Notes receivable balance, end of period............ccccoeevvrervirecnnenne. $ 1,669 $ 2,985

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities including accounts receivable, accounts payable
and accrued expenses reported in the consolidated balance sheets equal or approximate their fair values due to the short-
term nature of these instruments. All non-financial assets that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, which includes non-financial long-lived assets, are measured at fair value in certain
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment). During 2015, the Company did not have any
significant non-recurring measurements of non-financial assets or liabilities. Based on quoted market prices, the market
value of the Company’s equity method investment was $4.2 million at December 31, 2015.
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Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share have been computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding. Diluted earnings per share has been computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding after giving effect to potential common shares from dilutive stock options and certain non-
vested shares of restricted stock. The following table provides reconciliation between basic and diluted earnings per
share:

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) applicable to common StocK...........ccceevveneeueennen. $ (17,467) $ 4 S 163
Weighted average common shares outstanding 14,135 14,061 13,999
Basic earnings (10Ss) per Share...........ccccoevvveevieeiiiienieeeiieeeiie e $ (1.24) § 0.00 $ 0.01

Diluted earnings per share:
Earnings (loss) applicable to common StocK..............c.ceveeieeenenin. $ (17,467) $ 4 3 163

Weighted average common shares outstanding 14,135 14,061 13,999
Assuming conversion of options and restricted stock awards

OULSEANAING .ottt ettt e — — 32
Weighted average common shares outstanding, as adjusted............ 14,135 14,061 14,031
Diluted earnings (10ss) per share............cccvvevevieeciieniieeiie e $ (1.24) § 000 $ 0.01

Grants and options to purchase 419,025, 181,500 and 291,000 shares of common stock were outstanding as of
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share
as the option’s exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares for the respective periods.
An additional 126,148 and 141,936 options and restricted stock units were excluded for the year ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively, as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive, thereby decreasing the net loss per share.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and
directors based on estimated values on the date of grant. The Company uses the straight-line amortization method over
the vesting period of the awards. The Company has historically issued shares upon exercise of stock options or vesting of
restricted stock from new stock issuances. The Company estimates the fair value of restricted stock awards based upon
the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of stock options granted is
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. No share-based compensation cost was capitalized as a part of
inventory as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Post-Retirement Benefits

The Company recognizes the overfunded or underfunded position of a defined benefit postretirement plan as an
asset or liability in the balance sheet, measures the plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its funded status as of
December 31, 2015 and recognizes the changes in the funded status through comprehensive income (loss) in the year in
which the changes occur.

Foreign Currency Translation

For foreign subsidiaries, the environment in which the business conducts operations is considered the functional
currency, generally the local currency. The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated into the United
States dollar at the foreign exchange rates in effect at the end of the period. Revenue and expenses of foreign subsidiaries
are translated using an average of the foreign exchange rates in effect during the period. Translation adjustments are not
included in determining net earnings but are presented in comprehensive income (loss) within the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Transaction gains and losses that arise from foreign exchange rate fluctuations on
transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency are included in the consolidated statement of
operations as incurred. Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries totaling $22.0 million are
considered to not be permanently reinvested and the applicable portion of accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) has been tax effected. The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to the earnings
of foreign subsidiaries that are considered to be indefinitely reinvested have not been tax effected.
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Warranty Reserves

Historically, the Company has generally granted a warranty to its customers for a one-year period following the
sale of manufactured film projection equipment and on selected repaired equipment for a one-year period. In most
instances, the digital products are covered by the manufacturing firm’s OEM warranty; however, there are certain
customers where the Company may grant warranties in excess of the manufacturer’s warranty for digital products. The
Company accrues for these costs at the time of sale. The following table summarizes warranty activity for the three years
ended December 31, 2015.

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Warranty accrual at beginning of period.... $ 423 $ 662 $ 770
Charged to eXpense..........cceeeeeeeeneeennee. 535 332 349
Amounts written off, net of recoveries................... (611) (559) (473)
Foreign currency translation adjustment ................ (37) (12) 16

Warranty accrual at end of period.........cccoevvvevveeennee. $ 310 $ 423 $ 662

Contingencies

The Company accrues for contingencies when its assessments indicate that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimated. The Company’s estimates are based on currently available facts and
its estimates of the ultimate outcome or resolution. Actual results may differ from the Company’s estimates resulting in
an impact, positive or negative, on earnings.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606)” (“ASU 2014-09”). ASU 2014-09 requires an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which
it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers. The ASU will replace most existing
revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP when it becomes effective. The guidance is effective for the Company
beginning January 1, 2018. An entity may adopt this ASU either retrospectively or through a cumulative effect
adjustment as of the start of the first period for which it applies the ASU. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company
is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this guidance and has not yet selected a transition method nor has
it determined the effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting.

In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-11, “Simplifying the Measurement of
Inventory” (“ASU 2015-117). ASU 2015-11 requires an entity utilizing the FIFO inventory method to change their
measurement principle for inventory changes from the lower of cost or market to lower of cost and net realizable value.
The guidance is effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2017. An entity must adopt this ASU prospectively and
early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this guidance and has
not determined the effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17, “Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes”
(“ASU 2015-17"). The standard amends the current requirement for organizations to present deferred tax liabilities and
assets as current and noncurrent in a classified balance sheet. Instead, organizations will now be required to classify all
deferred tax assets and liabilities as noncurrent. The current requirement that deferred tax liabilities and assets of a tax-
paying component of an entity be offset and presented as a single amount is not affected by the amendments in this
update. The ASU is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016,
with early adoption permitted. ASU 2015-17 may be either applied prospectively to all deferred tax assets and liabilities
or retrospectively to all periods presented. The Company adopted ASU 2015-17 retrospectively effective December 31,
2015 and reclassified $3.5 million of current deferred tax assets to noncurrent deferred tax assets and netted $0.7 million
of long term deferred tax liabilities with noncurrent deferred tax assets on the December 31, 2014 consolidated balance
sheet.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, “Financial Instruments - Overall: Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“ASU 2016-01""). ASU 2016-01 requires equity investments
that do not result in consolidation and are not accounted under the equity method to be measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in net income; simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without
readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment; requires an entity to present
separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a
change in the instrument-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the liability at fair value in
accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments; requires separate presentation of financial assets and
financial liabilities by measurement category and form of financial assets on the balance sheet or the accompanying notes
to the financial statements; clarifies that an entity should evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax
asset related to available-for-sale securities in combination with the entity’s other deferred tax assets and modifies certain
fair value disclosure requirements. ASU 2016-01 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is not permitted. The adoption of
ASU 2016-01 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. Acquisitions

On September 13, 2013, the Company acquired Peintures Elite, Inc. (“Elite”) for $1.7 million in cash. Elite is a
manufacturer of paint and lacquer products and has been the primary provider of paint for our screen manufacturing
business. Approximately $1.2 million of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill and $0.6 million was allocated to
amortizable other intangibles. This business is included within the cinema segment. The amounts allocated to goodwill
were primarily attributable to anticipated synergies and other intangibles that do not qualify for separate recognition.

On October 1, 2013, the Company acquired CMS. CMS was acquired from Sony Electronics, Inc. for
approximately $17.4 million in cash, which was the purchase price of $16.0 million adjusted for cash on hand in Canada
of $0.4 million and working capital variance based upon CMS’s targeted working capital. CMS provides digital
technologies for out-of-home messaging, advertising and communication (the DOOH market) and EVS, which provides
enterprises with the infrastructure necessary for communication, collaboration, training and education of employees.
CMS is included within the digital media segment and operates from its offices in the United States and Canada and has
customers in North America.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date.

Amount of Identified Assets Acquired
and Liabilities Assumed
(in thousands)

CUITENE ASSEES .. vvviie it ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e et ataeeeeeeeeeeesesananaes $ 10,987
Property and eqUIPMENt ..........cccuviiiiiiiiiieiiiietie et 4,989
Other Assets 3,686
Software......c..cceueene. 233
Goodwill .......cccueeeeee —
Total acquired assets 19,895
Current liabilities............ccccuveen. 2,336
Long-term liabilities ................. 137
Total liabilities assumed 2473
Net aSSEtS ACAUITEMA ...vvveviiiiiiiieieiee et ettt et et et et eere e et etbeeaaeeaeeerees $ 17,422

The company recorded no goodwill as part of this transaction. The identifiable intangible assets are non-
deductible for tax purposes.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013 and for the year then ended
included amounts acquired from, as well as the results of operations of, CMS from October 1, 2013, forward. Results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2013, include revenue of $7.1 million and an operating loss of $1.0 million
attributable to CMS since its acquisition. Results of operations related to the acquisition of Elite were negligible for the
year ended December 31, 2013. Acquisition-related costs included in selling, general and administrative expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2013 approximated $0.6 million. The following unaudited pro forma information for the
Company has been prepared as if the acquisitions of Elite and CMS had occurred on January 1, 2012. The information is
based on the historical results of the separate companies and may not necessarily be indicative of the results that could
have been achieved or of results that may occur in the future. The pro forma adjustments include the impact of
depreciation and amortization of property and equipment and intangible assets acquired, interest expense on the
acquisition debt and income tax benefits for tax effects of the foregoing adjustments to depreciation, amortization and
interest expense.

2013
REVEIUE ...ttt e e et e e e ae e e e et ae e e eraeeeeennes $ 129,737
NEt INCOME (10SS) ..vvivviieeeiii et et et ettt ettt et eeeas $ 1,041
Net income (108s) per Share — basiC ........ceeerveereiiieiiiie e $ 0.07
Net income (loss) per share — diluted..........ccoeeevieeiiieniiieniiie e $ 0.07
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4. Inventories
Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Raw materials and components...............ccoccooeenenn. $ 1,351 § 2,281
WOTK in PrOCESS....ceeuveeriiieeriiieeieee et 190 632
Finished g00ds.......cccceviiiiiiiiiee e 8,152 11,195

$ 9,693 § 14,108

The inventory balances are net of reserves of approximately $2.0 million and $2.3 million as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment include the following:

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Land......coeoeeieniceienccee e $ 1,596 $ 1,605
Buildings and improvements.............cccoeveenireennen. 8,989 10,203
Machinery and equipment............ccccceeerriveenueeenenennn 3,757 4,227
Office furniture and fiIXtUIES.........ocovvviieieieinnrnnnnen. 4,153 3,713
Total properties COSt.......cuerrmrierieeeriienireenieeereeeenn 18,495 19,748
Less accumulated depreciation.............cceeeveeenee.. (6,727) (5,834)
Net property, plant and equipment....................... $ 11,768 $ 13,914

Depreciation expense approximated $2.1 million, $1.7 million and $1.4 million for the years ended December
31,2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

6. Restructuring Activities
2015 Corporate-wide strategic initiative

In connection with its strategic planning process, as well as the Company’s ongoing plans to improve efficiency
and effectiveness of its operations, the Company initiated plans in the second quarter of 2015 to reduce headcount and
more efficiently utilize real estate assets. Included in administrative expenses for year ended December 31, 2015, are $0.6
million and $0.2 million of severance and lease termination costs the Company expects to incur as part of this
restructuring plan. The Company expects that the strategic initiative will be completed in the third quarter of 2016.

2013 Convergent Related Restructuring

In connection with the integration of the 2013 CMS acquisition, as well as the Company’s ongoing plans to
improve efficiency and effectiveness of its operations, the Company initiated plans in the fourth quarter of 2013 to reduce
headcount and move the Company’s warehouse from Omaha, Nebraska to Georgia. In 2013, the Company recorded $1.5
million in severance costs it expected to incur as part of the integration of CMS and for site closure of the Omaha
warehouse. The restructuring initiative was completed during the first quarter of 2015.

2011 Corporate-wide strategic initiative

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Board of Directors and management of the Company approved a corporate-
wide strategic initiative to refocus its worldwide digital equipment distribution business, services platform and cinema
screen manufacturing business and exit the analog projector manufacturing business. The strategic initiative consisted of
selling the Company’s Omaha, Nebraska-based analog projector facility and manufacturing equipment and relocating its
corporate headquarters to a new, smaller location in Omaha, which also houses its Network Operations Center.
Aggregate severance charges for the strategic initiative that began in 2011 are approximately $1.4 million. The strategic
initiative was completed in the fourth quarter of 2013.
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The following reconciles the activity in the restructuring related severance accruals for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, which are included in accrued expenses:

2011
2013 Corporate-
2015 Convergent wide
Strategic related Strategic Total

Initiative restructuring Initiative Restructuring
(in thousands)

Balance, restructuring liability at December 31, 2012....... $ — $ — 5 88 § 88
Severance expense included in administrative expenses — 1,417 — 1,417
Site closure costs included in administrative expenses...... — 58 — 58
Severance Paid .........cccceeeceieeiiiiiiee e — (579) (88) (667)
Balance, restructuring liability at December 31, 2013....... — 896 — 896
Severance Paid ........ccecceeeeiiieriiiiiie e — (709) — (709)
Balance, restructuring liability at December 31, 2014....... — 187 — 187
Lease termination €Xpense........ueeeueeereveeeseveenseeeenneens 219 — — 219
Lease termination paid..........ccoecveeeeeeniieenireniee e (219) — — (219)
SEVErance EXPENSe......ccevuurrreeerrurerieenaieeeeeeeieeeeeereenns 559 — — 559
Severance Paid .........ceccvveeeiiieeiiiieiiie e (486) (187) — (673)
Balance, restructuring liability at December 31, 2015....... 73 8 —  $ — 3 73
7. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2015:

Useful Accumulated
life Gross amortization Net
(Years) (in thousands)
Intangible assets subject to amortization:
Product formulation ............ccccceeeeennnn. 10 440 (205) 235

Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2014:

Useful Accumulated
life Gross amortization Net
(Years) (in thousands)
Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Customer relationships............c..c.o....... 4-9 $ 1,556 $ (1,538) $ 18
SOfWAre .....veveeeiiiieieeeieee e 3 905 (144) 761
Software in development...................... 3 16 — 16
Product formulation ............cccccceeeeenenen. 10 526 (153) 373
Total..ooviieeice e $ 3,003 § (1,835) § 1,168

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, with definitive lives are amortized over their useful lives. The Company
recorded amortization expense relating to other identifiable intangible assets of $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.1
million during each of the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. During 2015, the Company
determined that the future undiscounted cash flows from the software intangibles were significantly less than carrying
amount of the software intangibles and recorded an impairment charge of $0.6 million for these intangibles to measure
them at their fair value. During 2015, gross intangibles were reduced by $0.9 million due to this impairment. Any other
change in the cost and accumulated amortization of the identifiable assets was due to certain intangibles recorded in a
foreign currency and therefore affected by fluctuations in the exchange rate.
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The following table shows the Company’s estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets for
the next five years.

Amount

(in thousands)
2016 e $ 62
2017 e 51
2018 et 41
2009 e 30
2020ttt 21
Thereafter .......ooovviiiiiieeeeee e 30

8. Goodwill

All of the Company’s goodwill is related to the Cinema segment. The following represents a summary of
changes in the Company’s carrying amount of goodwill (in thousands):

Balance as of December 31,2013 ........ccovvvvveveeeeeeennnn. $ 1,123
Foreign currency translation ............ccccceevcveevieeeneenns (94)
Balance as of December 31,2014 ........ccovvvvveveeeeeeennnn. $ 1,029
Foreign currency translation .............cceceeeeevnieerueenneenne. (166)
Balance as of December 31, 2015......cccovvvvvieeieeeneeennne. $ 863

9. Accrued Expenses
The major components of current accrued expenses are as follows:

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Employee related.........cceevvriiieieecieeiieiieeiieeinene $ 1,526 $ 1,797
Legal and professional fees.............cceeevvveenrenen. 158 265
Lease EXPeNSES ....coeueerrrieerieeniiiieniieeeiieee e 281 86
Warranty obligation..........cccceevevivnieiiieeeninennee. 310 423
Joint venture excess distributions ...........ccccc.eenee. 502 596
Interest and taXes .......ccceeveerierienieeiiinicneenieee 644 575
Post-retirement benefit obligation......................... 27 17
Severance and benefits.........cooevveiiiieniieeieieninenne 245 303
OheT ..o 407 304

TOtal...eeeieee e $ 4,100 $ 4,366

The major components of long-term accrued expenses are as follows:

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Post-retirement benefit obligation......................... $ 318 % 213
Employee related..........ccoeeveiieiciiiiiieiieeiiee — 353
Rent and leasehold improvements......................... 1,263 1,184
OheT ..o — 26

TOtAL. .ot $ 1,581 § 1,776

10. Debt

The Company was party to a $20 million Revolving Credit Agreement and Note (collectively, the “Credit
Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (“Wells Fargo”). The Credit Agreement expired June 30, 2015. Since
inception of the agreement, no amounts had been borrowed on the Credit Agreement.

11. Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income taxes consists of:

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
UnNited StAtes ....c..eevveriiriiieenie st $ (16,630) $§ (9,774) $ (5,916)
FOT@IZN .ttt 12,164 9,305 6,867

$ (4,466) $ (469) $ 951
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Income tax expense (benefit) attributable to income from continuing operations consists of:

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Federal:
CUITENL ..ot $ 1,538 $ 592§ 218
Deferred ......ooviiiiiiiiiiiec 7,348 (3,333) (1,141)
TOtAL.c e 8,886 (2,741) (923)
State
CULTENE ..ottt (1,301) 316 (62)
Deferred ......eeeieeiiiiee e 635 (589) (86)
TOtal..cooeiiii e (666) (273) (148)
Foreign:
CUITENE ..ottt 3,597 3,196 1,661
Deferred ....cvvveiee e 1,184 (647) 198
TOtAL..c et 4,781 2,549 1,859

§ 13,001 § (465 S 788

Income tax expense attributable to income (loss) from continuing operations differed from the amounts
computed by applying the U.S. Federal income tax rate to pretax income from continuing operations as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Amount % Amount % Amount %
(in thousands)

Expected federal income tax expense (benefit)... $ (1,519) (34.0) $ (160) (3400 $ 323 34.0
State income taxes, net of federal benefit........... (333) (7.4) (153) (32.5) (88) 9.3)
Foreign tax rates varying from 34%.................. (830) (18.6) (623) (132.7) (489) (51.4)
Change in foreign reinvestment strategy ............ 6,650 148.9 429 91.4 1,038 109.2
Valuation allowance..............cooeeveevvnvvvveneeneeennn. 9,081 203.3 — — — —
OhEr o (48) (1.1) 42 8.7 4 0.4

TOtAL ..ot $(13,001) (291.1) § (465) (99.1) $§ 788 82.9

Deferred tax assets and liabilities were comprised of the following:

December 31,

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets: (in thousands)
Deferred TEVENUE. .......ooovveieiiiiieeeecee et $ 1,567 $ 2,028
Non-deductible accruals ........coceeeeiriirnirniiinie i 330 528
INVENLOTY TESEIVES ...eieiiiiiieee ettt 550 768
Stock cOMPENSAtION EXPENSE .....vevveenveeieeriierireeeieeeieereeenireseeesanes 215 289
WaAITANLY TESETVES ...eenvieeiiiieeiiiie it e seee et et et e et eniree e 107 130
Uncollectible receivable TeServes........oocoviereirvienceieniinnieeuecnnns 608 231
Accrued group health insurance claims..........cccooeeeeevieeniieceeenns 137 120
REStIUCLUTING TESCTVES ..eevvieeeieieiiieeeieieeeiieeeeeeeieeeeeaeeiseeeeieeenes 89 111
Net Operating lOSSES ....vveeevieeierieiiieeeiieeiie e er e eiaeeireeeeiraees 6,995 646
Fair value adjustment to notes receivable...........cccccoceeveiienenniens 637 —
Foreign tax CreditS......o.ueeiiieeiiieiiie e e 2,867 2,854
Depreciation and amortization ..............ceccveerveveerieieenie e 448 707
Accumulated other comprehensive iINCOMe .........ccceevveerieeeeennn. 1,745 276
OHET ..ttt (11) 8
Net deferred tax aSSEtS.......coeevivieviiirrrieeeeeeee e 16,284 8,696
Valuation alloWancCe............oeeeveeiiiieeiiieeie e (9,081) —
Net deferred tax assets after valuation allowance..................... 7,203 8,696
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization............ccceeeeeeeeriieeeseiesieeeniieeeeee e 494 444
Equity in income (loss) of equity method investments..................... 47) 5D
INtangibles .......cc.oovuiiiiiiiiiiie e — 238
Cash repatriation...........eeevueeeriieeieieniee et et e 8,472 329
Net deferred tax Habiliti€s .........oooviviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiie e 8,919 960
Net deferred tax assets (1iabilities) .......c.eeevvveerieeeicieeeniieeeiie e $ (1,716) $ 7,736




In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. The Company considers the scheduled reversal of taxable
temporary differences, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. A
cumulative loss in a particular tax jurisdiction in recent years is a significant piece of evidence with respect to the
realizability that is difficult to overcome. Based on the available objective evidence including recent updates to the taxing
jurisdictions generating income, the Company concluded that a valuation allowance of $9.1 million should be recorded
against the Company’s U.S. and China tax jurisdiction deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015. No valuation
allowance was recorded in 2014.

The tax effect of the Company’s net operating loss carryforwards for Federal and state tax purposes total
approximately $6.7 million at December 31, 2015, expiring at various times in 2023 through 2025, and $0.3 million in
China at December 31, 2015, expiring at various times beginning 2018 through 2019. The Company has foreign tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $2.9 million at December 31, 2015 that expire in 2024.

The Company has recorded income taxes of $8.5 million on accumulated but undistributed earnings for foreign
subsidiaries aggregating approximately $20.8 million at December 31, 2015 resulting in a deferred tax liability of $8.5
million. These earnings are not considered permanently reinvested in the business and will be transferred to the United
States as required by business needs.

The Company currently has an exam initiated for Federal purposes for the 2011 fiscal year. The Company has
examinations not yet initiated for Federal purposes for fiscal years 2012, 2013 and 2014. In most cases, the Company has
examinations open for state or local jurisdictions based on the particular jurisdiction’s statute of limitations.

Estimated amounts related to underpayment of income taxes, including interest and penalties, are classified as a
component of tax expense in the consolidated statements of operations and were not material for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. Amounts accrued for estimated underpayment of income taxes were zero as of
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

12. Financing Receivable

The following table presents sales-type lease receivables.

December 31,2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Investment in sales-type leases
CUITENE ... $ 1,185 § 1,372
NONCUITENT ... 198 1,383

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there are no sales-type lease receivables that are past due.

Scheduled maturities of minimum lease payments outstanding at December 31, 2015, are as follows:

Scheduled

Years ending: Payments
(in thousands)
December 31, 2016.......uuviiiiiiiiieiiee e $ 1,185
December 31, 2017 ....ccuviiiiiiieeeeee e 198
TOLAL ..ttt $ 1,383

13. Notes Receivable

During 2011, the Company entered into certain unsecured notes receivable arrangements with CDF2 Holdings,
LLC pertaining to the sale and installation of digital projection equipment. The notes receivable accrue interest at a rate
of 15% per annum, which is to be paid in accordance with an agreed-upon cash flow schedule, as defined. Interest not
paid in any particular year is added to the principal and accrues interest at 15%. The Company has recorded the notes
receivable at their fair value. See note 2 for additional information on the fair value of the notes.
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14. Deferred Revenue

The Company deferred revenue associated with extended warranties provided to a third party exhibitor in 2011.
The Company expects to recognize $0.9 million of the revenue in 2016 and the remainder no earlier than 2022 when all
conditions of revenue recognition have been met. The following summarizes the amounts included in deferred revenue
related to extended warranties.

December 31,2015  December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Extended warranty deferrals expected to be recognized

WILhIN ONE YEAT ..evviiiieiieciie ettt $ 895 $ 715
Extended warranty deferrals expected to be recognized after
ONE YEAT ..eeenvtieeuiteeeiieee ettt eestteeseieee sttt eesebeeneaeesnbeenns 1,108 2,003

Total revenue deferred for extended warranty $ 2,003 $ 2,718

15. Stock Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and
directors based on estimated fair values. Share-based compensation expense included in selling and administrative
expenses approximates the following:

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Share based compensation eXpense ..........c..cceerveerveennen. $ 501 $ 427 $ 461

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company’s 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2010 Plan”) provides the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors with the discretion to grant stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, restricted stock
units, performance shares, or performance units. Vesting terms vary with each grant and may be subject to vesting upon a
“change in control” of the Company. The total number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2010 Plan is 1,600,000
shares. During 2015, the Company awarded 383,300 stock options and 87,500 restricted stock units under the 2010 Plan.
During 2014, the Company awarded no stock options and 172,500 restricted stock units under the 2010 Plan. During
2013, the Company awarded 22,500 options and 9,000 restricted stock shares under the 2010 Plan. At December 31,
2015, 978,500 shares remained available for issuance under the 2010 Plan.

Options

As noted above, under the 2010 Plan, the Company granted options to purchase 383,300 shares, zero shares, and
22,500 shares of the Company’s common stock during 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. Options to purchase shares of
common stock were granted with exercise prices equal to the fair value of the common stock on the date of grant and vest
over a one-year and five-year period.

The weighted average grant date fair value of stock options granted in 2015 and 2013 was $1.44 and $1.85,
respectively. The fair value of each stock option granted is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes valuation
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2015 2013
Expected dividend yield at date of grant 0.00% 0.00%
Risk-free interest rate...........cceeeueeneennenne 1.87% 0.90%
Expected stock price volatility .........cccoeveieiiieiniieiie e 32.06% 58.50%
Expected life of options (in YEars) ........ccceeeeveeereieenieeeeieeeniieeeeee e 6.0 5.5

The risk-free interest rate assumptions were based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the
grant. The expected volatility was based on historical daily price changes of the Company’s stock for one year prior to
the date of grant. The expected life of options is the average number of years the Company estimates that options will be
outstanding. The Company considers groups of associates that have similar historical exercise behavior separately for
valuation purposes.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s activities with respect to its stock options:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Number of Price Contractual Intrinsic
Options Per Share Term Value
(in years) (in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31,2014 ..........cccvvevveneee. 181,500 $ 5.56 6.77 $ 13
Granted .........oeeeeeieiiiieeeiiie e 383,300 4.33
EXercised ........ooovvviiiiiiiiieiieee e — —
Forfeited .........ooovieiiiiii e (114,000) 6.21
Outstanding at December 31, 2015........cccveviieennenn. 450,800 $ 448 921 §$ 131
Exercisable at December 31,2015.........ccccceevvnvennn.. 103,300 $ 4.38 776 $ 36

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total that would have been received by the option
holders if all in-the-money options had been exercised on the date indicated.

As of December 31, 2015, 347,500 stock option awards were non-vested. Unrecognized compensation costs
related to all stock options outstanding amounted to $0.5 million at December 31, 2015, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 4.9 years.

Restricted Stock Plans

The Company’s 2005 Restricted Stock Plan (the “2005 Plan”) provided for the grant of restricted stock awards.
A total of 250,000 shares were reserved for issuance under the 2005 Plan, which expired September 1, 2013. These
shares were subject to restrictions on transferability and other restrictions, if any, as the Compensation Committee may
decide. During 2013, the Company awarded 41,000 restricted shares under the 2005 Plan, which vest annually over a
three year period.

The Ballantyne Strong, Inc. Non-Employee Directors’ Restricted Stock Plan (the “Non-Employee Plan”) and
the Ballantyne Strong, Inc. 2014 Non-Employee Directors’ Restricted Stock Plan (the “2014 Non-Employee Plan”)
provide for the award of restricted shares to outside directors. Shares issued under the Non-Employee Plan and the 2014
Non-Employee Plan vest the day preceding the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders in the year following
issuance. A total of 250,000 shares are reserved for issuance under the Non-Employee Plan and the 2014 Non-Employee
Plan. During 2015 and 2014, 53,208 and 41,760 shares, respectively, were granted under the 2014 Non-Employee Plan.
During 2013, 37,500 shares were granted under the Non-Employee Plan, which expired on May 21, 2013.

As noted above, the Company awarded a total of 140,708, 214,260 and 87,500 restricted stock units and
restricted shares under the 2010 Plan, the 2005 Plan and the Non-Employee Plan during 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The weighted average grant date fair value of restricted stock awarded in 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $4.38,
$3.86 and $4.28, respectively. In connection with the restricted stock granted to certain employees and non-employee
directors, the Company accrues compensation expense based on the estimated number of shares expected to be issued
utilizing the most current information available to the Company at the date of the financial statements. The Company
estimates the fair value of the restricted stock awards based upon the market price of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant.

As of December 31, 2015, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock
awarded was approximately $0.4 million which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity:

Weighted
Number of Average
Restricted Stock Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2014 264,793 $ 3.93
Granted.........eeeeeeeieiiiiiiiiiee 140,708 4.38
Shares vested .........oevvvirrieeiiie e (116,316) 4.18
Shares forfeited..........ccovveeiiieeiiie e, (158,827) 3.83
Nonvested at December 31, 2015.......ccoeeeeeeeeeeeennnne. 130,358 $ 4.30
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16. Foreign Exchange Contracts

The Company’s primary exposure to foreign currency fluctuations pertains to its subsidiaries in Canada and
China. In certain instances the Company may enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage a portion of this
risk. The Company has not designated its foreign exchange forward contracts as hedges. The Company’s foreign
exchange forward contracts expired in 2014 and no new contracts were entered into in 2015.

All cash flows related to our foreign currency exchange contracts are classified as operating cash flows. The
Company recognized in other income, the following realized and unrealized gains from foreign currency forward
exchange contracts:

(in thousands) Classification 2015 2014 2013
Foreign exchange forward
CONTTACES ..o Other Income (Loss) $ — 3 (145) $ (380)

17. Compensation and Benefit Plans
Bonus Plans

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors administers a Short-Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”).
The Plan is an annual incentive program that provides certain officers and key employee’s bonuses in the form of cash or
restricted stock or a combination of both if the Company achieves certain financial goals. Each payout is further subject
to the achievement of certain individual goals, as defined in the Plan. The Company has recorded expenses related to the
Plan of approximately zero, zero, and $0.4 million in 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The bonuses are generally paid
through a distribution of cash and restricted stock.

Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan (the “Plan”) for all eligible employees. Pursuant to
the provisions of the Plan, employees may defer up to 100% of their compensation. The Company will match 50% of the
amount deferred up to 6% of their compensation. The contributions made to the Plan by the Company were
approximately $0.4 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Postretirement Health Care
The Company sponsors a postretirement health care plan (the “Plan”) for two former executives and their
spouses. The Company’s policy is to fund the cost of the Plan as expenses are incurred. The costs of the postretirement

benefits were accrued over the employees’ service lives.

The following table sets forth the Plan’s benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status at
December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
(in thousands)

Reconciliation of benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at January 1 ..........ccccceeveevierieneeeeieniee e $ 230 $ 214

Interest CoSt.......coovvveeiiiiiiiiiniiiens 8 8
Benefits paid (92) (28)
Contributions by plan participants 4 4
Actuarial (ZaiN) LOSS .....vvieivvieeiiieiieeeetie et 49 32
Benefit obligation at December 31.........cccciiiiieeniieniiieie e 199 230
Fair value of plan assets at December 31........cccccccvevviiienieeniinnns — —
Funded status at end of year...........ccoeveeeieniiniennceiiiiee e, $ (199) § (230)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:
NONCUITENE @SSELS ....evveieeeiereeereeereesieeieeereetreetreesseesseesseessaeeeseanns $ — 3 —
Current Habilities ........cceerviieeereieriiiiie et (18) 17)
Noncurrent liabilities..............covvvveeirnirerennns (180) (213)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (74) (139)
Net amount reCOZNIZEd .........eevereieeieieeeiiieieeie e $ 272) $ (369)
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2015 and 2014
consists of:

2015 2014
(in thousands)
Prior Service Cost (CTedit)........covurrierieiiireieeriiecieeiie e eeee e $ 254) $ (278)
Net actuarial i ........cccecuevririiriireiieteie et 180 139
Total accumulated other comprehensive income ............cccccuveeee $ (74) $ (139)

Net periodic benefit cost recognized in the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was:

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
INEETEST COSL. . veuvenreiiie ettt ettt ettt $ &8 3 8 3 18
Prior Service Credit......oovieneeeerieeeieeiee e 24) (24) —
AmOortization Of GaAIN .........ceeevieiiiiiiiiie e 7 6 7
Net periodic benefit cost recognized..........cceeevveevreveeeneennenn $ © $ (10) $ 25

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) in the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net actuarial ZaiN.........cccvervevvireeieriieeerieeeereeeeae e eree s $ 48 3 33§ 165
Prior service cost for plan amendment ...............ccccveeeneeenee. — — (302)
Prior Service Credit........oeueeiiiieiiieiiie e 24 24 —
Amortization of (Zain) L0SS...........eevevveirrieeiiieeiiieerreeeiie s (7) (6) (7)

Total recognized in accumulated other comprehensive

INCOME (10SS)..evvierieirieetieetiiiee e et e et e et e eee e eeres $ 65 $ 51§ (144)

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and

accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss).............. $ 56 § 41 3 (119)

For the defined postretirement benefits plan, amortization of the net gain from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) into net periodic benefit cost to be recognized in the next fiscal year is expected to be
insignificant.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
were as follows:

December 31,

2015 2014 2013
DiSCOUNT TALE ....vvvveiieciiiie et 3.95% 3.65% 4.45%
Rate of compensation increase .............ooveeeevveerenenns N/A N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rate...........ccccvvereenivieeeeennnnnnn. 5.90% 6.20% 6.50%

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2015 2014 2013
DiSCoUNt 1ate .....ccveeveeiirniiiiiieie e 3.65% 4.45% 3.60%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets....... N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase .............ocveeeevveereneenns N/A N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rate..........c.coeevvevivvrerieeeniieenns 6.20% 6.50% 8.10%

Assumed health care trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A 1%
change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

1% Increase 1% Decrease
(in thousands)

Effect on total service and interest cost components of periodic
postretirement health care benefit Cost.........coovuerviervieeiieeneenienen. $ 13 (1)

Effect on the health care component of the accumulated
postretirement benefit Obligation.............cecvvevvecieriiereeierieerieeenne. $ 28 $ (23)
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For measurement purposes, a 6.2% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits
was assumed for 2015. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% through 2019 and remain at that level
thereafter. The Company expects to contribute $0.02 million to its postretirement benefit plan in 2016.

The benefits expected to be paid from the postretirement benefit plan are as follows:

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021-2025
(in thousands)
Benefits expected to be paid......... $ 18 $ 20 $ 10 $ 10 $ 11 $ 56

The expected benefits are based on the same assumptions used to measure the Company’s benefit obligation at
December 31, 2015 and include estimated future employee service, if any.

18. Leases

The Company and its subsidiaries lease plant and office facilities, autos and equipment under operating leases
expiring through 2023. These leases generally contain renewal options and the Company expects to renew or replace
certain of these leases in the ordinary course of business. Rent expense under operating lease agreements amounted to
approximately $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The Company also has capital leases for computer equipment. The capital lease obligations related to
accrued expenses are included in accrued expenses on the balance sheet.

The Company’s future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Capital Operating
Year Ending December 31, Leases Leases
(In thousands)
$ 319§ 622
290 451
248 398
131 368
— 350
— 636
Total minimum lease PayMents...........c.ccueeveereeriereeieeeieeeeneennns 988 $ 2,825
Less: Amount representing interest............... 49
Present value of minimum lease payments 939
Less: Current Maturities ........eeeverveeierseeenieenieneciieie e e 223
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion............c.cceeeueeuneeee $ 716

19. Contingencies and Concentrations
Concentrations

The Company’s top ten customers accounted for approximately 42% of 2015 consolidated net revenues. Trade
accounts receivable from these customers represented approximately 33% of net consolidated receivables at December
31, 2015.
Self-Insurance

The Company is self-insured up to certain stop loss limits for group health insurance. Accruals for claims
incurred but not paid as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s policy is to accrue the employee health benefit accruals based on historical
information along with certain assumptions about future events.
Litigation

The Company is involved, from time to time, in certain legal disputes in the ordinary course of business. No

such disputes, individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material effect on its business or financial
condition at December 31, 2015.
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20. Business Segment Information

As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s operations were conducted principally through two business
segments: Cinema and Digital Media. In 2015, the Company renamed our segments from Systems Integration to Cinema
and from Managed Services to Digital Media. There was no impact on current or prior years to the individual
components of these segments. Cinema operations include the sale of digital projection equipment, screens, and sound
systems. Digital Media operations include the delivery of end to end digital signage solutions, video communication
solutions, content creation and management and service of digital signage and digital cinema equipment. The Company
allocates resources to business segments and evaluates the performance of these segments based upon reported segment
operating profit. The Company records intercompany sales at cost and has eliminated all significant intercompany sales

in consolidation.

Summary by Business Segments

Net Revenue:

CINEIMA ..ttt ettt ettt e e et e e e e etta e e e e sataeeeenanaeeeenes
Digital Media....ccuvieeeiieeiiieeiiie et

Total segment NEt TEVENUE .........eeeeruveeruriiriieeeiieeeeiieeeeee e
ElMINations.....cooveeveerieiniiinientensie ettt e

Total NEL FEVENUE .......ccovevirieeeieieeeee et ee e e reeeens

Operating income (loss):

CINCIMA ..vviieeiiiiee ettt ie e e ettt eeeetabeee e etabae e e senaaeeesesabeee e nnsaeaeeanes
Digital Media...ccueeeeeieiiiieeiiie ettt

Total segment operating iNCOME............coovvereueevierieniennenane.

Unallocated general and administrative eXpenses .........c...cceerveeennes
Gain (loss) on sale or disposal of assets:

(31315 ' - RSP PRRURR
Digital Media...cccvvieeeiieiiiie et
Total gain (loss) on sale or disposal of assets.............ccceeeueeenee
Income (10ss) from OPerations............ceevveeevueeerivernseeeennnen.

Equity in income (loss) of equity method investments — Cinema.....
Other income (expense)

CINGIMA .ttt ettt e s
Cinema — fair value adjustment to notes receivable ....................
Cinema — foreign currency transaction gain (10Ss) ...........cc.........
Digital Media — foreign currency transaction gain (loss).............
Digital Media...ccoueeveuieiiiieiiiie et
COTPOTALE ASSEL....eeeuvieetieeeiieetieesttee ettt et e ettt et eeennree et e eaneeas

Total other INCOME........cooiiviiiiiiiiciici e

Income (108S) BefOre taxes.....cveevuvveerieieiiieiiie e

Expenditures on capital equipment:

CINEIMA ..ttt sttt
Digital Media
Total expenditures on capital equipment...........cceceeeeeeeeeneenne

Depreciation, amortization and impairment:
(05101531 1 - ISP URRUUUUURRRPRRRt
Digital Media...ccoueeeeeiiiiieieeeiie et

Total depreciation, amortization and impairment....................
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Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(in thousands)

62,199 $ 63,781 $ 85,451
31,837 32,494 19,105
94,036 96,275 104,556
(1,207) (1,189) (946)
92,829 95,086 103,610
7,317 6,119 7,864
(1,024) 4) 1,100
6,293 6,095 8,064
(10,822) (7,910) (8,857)
(370) $ 3) $ (13)
(55) 13 5
(425) 10 (8)
(4,954) (1,805) 99
9% $ 78 S 25)
27 $ 483§ (25)
(1,595) — —
1,875 825 850
(263) (214) —
30 164 52
118 — —
392§ 1258 $ 877
(4,466) S (469) $ 951

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

(in thousands)

143§ 442§ 370
299 1,540 165
442§ 1,982 $ 535
1,545 S 1,208 $ 1,308
1,425 716 203
2970 S 1,924 $ 1,511




December 31,
2015 2014
(in thousands)

Identifiable assets

CINEIMA .. ettt e $ 45443 § 64,083

Digital Media.......ccoceiiiiiiiieiiieiieniene e 15,319 25,272

COTPOTALE ASSELS .....evieeieiiieeeetie e ettt ee et ee ettt ee e e e eeeeenaeees 6,102 —
TOtAL et $ 66,864 $ 89,355

Summary by Geographical Area

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

Net revenue

United States..........ccoooevieiiniciiiiiciceeccee e § 60,615 $ 62,149 § 67,348
ChiNa...cociiiiiiic e 18,180 14,010 16,580
5,074 5,661 3,709

3,540 8,288 11,788

2,870 2,718 1,254

1,569 1,189 1,216

474 910 843

Other ... 507 161 872
Total ..o § 92,829 $§ 95086 $ 103,610

December 31,
2015 2014
(in thousands)

Identifiable assets

UNIEEA SEALES....evee ittt e et e e eeaae e e e $ 32,783 $ 59,988
CaNada ..o 25,698 19,305
CRNA. . 7,051 7,002
Asia (excluding China) ..........ccceeeeiieeiiie e 1,332 3,060

TOAL 1. $ 66,864 $ 89,355

Net revenues by business segment are to unaffiliated customers. Identifiable assets by geographical area are
based on location of facilities. Net sales by geographical area are based on destination of sales.

21. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2015 and 2014.

2015 2014

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net revenue.......cocceveveveerennenne. $22,470 $19,723 $23,512 $27,124 $22,021 $22,027 $22,664 $28,374
Gross profit......ccccceeeeeencncnnn. 4,261 3,676 3,968 5,682 4,216 4,247 4,057 5,640
Net earnings (1088) ...c.cevveerenene. (10,164)  (2,919) (3,201) (1,183) (594) 381 (109) 318
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share:
Basic(1) covevveereeieiiesiieneee (0.72) 0.21) (0.23) (0.08) (0.04) 0.03 (0.01) 0.02
Diluted(1) .coooveveiiiiiiienn. (0.72) 0.21) (0.23) (0.08) (0.04) 0.03 (0.01) 0.02
Stock price:
High ..o 5.05 5.13 4.88 4.87 5.15 4.89 4.69 4.50
LOW eveeieie e 4.01 4.00 3.42 4.24 4.46 3.76 3.65 3.79

(1) Earnings per share is computed independently for each of the quarters. Therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings
per share may not equal the total for the year.
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22. Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to the proxy contest settlement agreement entered into with Fundamental Global Investors, LLC and
certain of its affiliates on April 21, 2015, the Company expanded its Board of Directors to nine directors and nominated
five director candidates from Fundamental Global’s slate of directors, who were elected at the 2015 Annual Meeting.
Fundamental Global Investors, LLC and its affiliates hold approximately 22.07% of the Company’s outstanding shares of
common stock as of December 31, 2015. Mr. D. Kyle Cerminara, the Chief Executive Officer, Co-Founder and Partner
of Fundamental Global Investors, LLC, serves as the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The Company
reimbursed Fundamental Global for its expenses incurred in connection with the proxy contest and settlement agreement
in the amount of $178,415 in 2015. The independent members of the Board of Directors approved the reimbursement.

The Company’s purchase of the equity securities that comprise its marketable securities and equity method
investments were made in companies in which Fundamental Global has an ownership interest. The independent members
of the Board of Directors approved these purchases and the Company made no payments to Fundamental Global related
to these purchases.

23. Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events following the balance sheet date for which accounting and disclosure in these
financial statements is required.
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Schedule II
Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)
Balance Charged
at to costs Amounts  Foreign Balance

beginning and Written Exchange at end of
of year  expenses Acquisitions off(1) Translation year

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Year ended December 31, 2015............. $ 679 § 1,379 § — $ (1108 2ns 1,927

Year ended December 31, 2014 ............. 703 92 — (112) 4) 679

Year ended December 31, 2013 ............. 487 273 314 (363) ®) 703
Inventory reserves:

Year ended December 31, 2015............. $ 2,190 $ 1970 $ — $ (2245 % 65 $ 1,980

Year ended December 31, 2014 ............. 1,792 470 — (71) @))] 2,190

Year ended December 31, 2013 ............. 1,494 323 597 (622) — 1,792

(1) The deductions from reserves are net of recoveries.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

1. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision
and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures,
as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 (e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting, as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

2. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended December 31, 2015, no change occurred in our internal controls over financial
reporting that materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial
reporting.

3. Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(a) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Company carried out an
evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s management used the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) to perform this evaluation. Based on that evaluation, the
Company’s management concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2015.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 has been

audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, a copy of which is
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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(b) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ballantyne Strong, Inc.:

We have audited Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2015, and the related financial statement schedule and
our report dated March 7, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and related
financial statement schedule.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 7, 2016

Item 9B. Other Information

None
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item will be contained in the “Board of Directors,” “Executive Officers,”
“Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act,” and “Board Committees—Audit Committee” sections of the
definitive proxy statement, to be filed in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 23, 2016,
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Our board of directors has adopted the Code of Ethics (the “Code of Ethics”) that applies to all of our directors,
officers and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer. The Code of Ethics is posted on our Internet website, www.ballantynestrong.com/investors, under the “Corporate
Governance” tab, and is available free of charge, upon request to Corporate Secretary, 13710 FNB Parkway, Suite 400,
Omaha, NE 68154; telephone number: (402) 453-4444.

Any amendment to, or waiver from, the Code of Ethics applicable to our directors and executive officers will be
disclosed in a current report on Form 8-K within four business days following the date of the amendment or waiver
unless the rules of the NYSE MKT then permit website posting of such amendments and waivers, in which case we
would post such disclosures on our Internet website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be contained in the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,”
“Compensation Risk Assessment,” “Compensation Consultant,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” “2015 Summary Compensation Table,” “Grants of Plan-Based Awards for Fiscal 2015,” “Outstanding
Equity Awards at 2015 Fiscal Year-End,” “Options Exercised and Stock Vested” and “Director Compensation” sections
of the definitive proxy statement, to be filed in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 23,
2016, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table sets forth information regarding our Stock Option, Restricted Stock and Stock Purchase
Plan Agreements as of December 31, 2015.

Number of
securities
remaining
available for
Number of future issuance
securities to be Weighted under equity
issued upon average exercise compensation
exercise of price of plans excluding
outstanding outstanding securities
options, warrants options, warrants reflected in
Plan Category and rights and rights column (a)
(@) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by security
ROLARTS .. 504,008(1) 4.27 1,140,492(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders.......c..covvecevciiinicoienicciiniiccienee — — —
TOtal e 504,008(1) 4.27 1,140,492(2)

(1) Includes 450,800 securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options under our 2010 Long-Term
Incentive Plan and 53,208 securities to be issued upon vesting of rights under our 2014 Non-Employee Directors
Restricted Stock Plan.

(2) Includes 978,500 securities remaining available for issuance under our 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan and

161,992 securities remaining available for issuance under our 2014 Non-Employee Directors Restricted Stock
Plan.
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The information regarding our largest holders and ownership of our securities by our management and directors
will be contained in the “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” section of the definitive
proxy statement, to be filed in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 23, 2016, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be contained in the “Related Persons Transaction Procedures” and
“Corporate Governance — Board Independence” sections of the definitive proxy statement, to be filed in connection with
the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 23, 2016, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be contained in the “Proposal Three — Ratification of Appointment of
the Company’s Independent Auditors” and “Board Committees — Audit Committee” sections of the definitive proxy
statement, to be filed in connection with the annual meeting of shareholders to be held on May 23, 2016, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
a. The following documents are filed as part of this report on Form 10-K:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements:

An Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements is filed as a part of Item 8.

2. Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for each of the three years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013.

Financial Statements of the Registrant’s subsidiaries are omitted because the Registrant is primarily an
operating company and the subsidiaries are wholly owned.

3. Exhibit list.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

BALLANTYNE STRONG, INC.

By:/s/ D. KYLE CERMINARA By:/s/ NATHAN D. LEGBAND
D. Kyle Cerminara, Chairman of the Board of Directors Nathan D. Legband, Senior Vice President and Chief
and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Officer) Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: March 7, 2016 Date: March 7, 2016

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By: /s/ D. KYLE CERMINARA
D. Kyle Cerminara, Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer)

Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ NATHAN D. LEGBAND
Nathan D. Legband, Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 7. 2016

By: /s/ SAMUEL C. FREITAG (1)
Samuel C. Freitag, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ JAMES C. SHAY (1)
James C. Shay, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ CHARLES T. LANKTREE (1)

Charles T. Lanktree, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ MARCE. LEBARON (1)

Marc E. LeBaron, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ WILLIAM J. GERBER (1)

William J. Gerber, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ ROBERTJ. MARINO (1)

Robert J. Marino, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ ROBERTJ. ROSCHMAN (1)

Robert J. Roschman, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ NDAMUKONG SUH (1)
Ndamukong Suh, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

By: /s/ NATHAN D. LEGBAND

Nathan D. Legband, Attorney-In-Fact
Date: March 7, 2016
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Document Description Form  Exhibit Filing Date Herewith
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Ballantyne of Omaha, S-8 3.1 December 7, 2006
Inc.
3.1.1  Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of S-8 3.1.1 December 7, 2006

Incorporation of Ballantyne of Omaha, Inc.

3.1.2  Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of S-8 3.1.2  December 7, 2006
Incorporation of Ballantyne of Omaha, Inc.

3.1.3  Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of S-8 3.1.3  December 7, 2006
Incorporation of Ballantyne of Omaha, Inc.

3.1.4  Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation ~ 10-Q 3.14 August 7, 2009

3.1.5  Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior 8-K 3.1 November 6, 2014
Participating Preferred Stock of Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
3.1.6  Certificate of Elimination of Series A Junior 8-K 3.1 May 1, 2015
Participating Preferred Stock of Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
3.2 Ballantyne of Omaha, Inc. Bylaws S-8 32 December 7, 2006
3.2.1  First Amendment to Bylaws of Ballantyne of Omaha, S-8 3.2.1  December 7, 2006
Inc.
3.2.2  Second Amendment to Bylaws of Ballantyne of Omaha, S-8 3.2.2  December 7, 2006
Inc.
3.2.3  Third Amendment to Bylaws of Ballantyne of Omaha, S-8 3.2.3  December 7, 2006
Inc.
3.2.4  Fourth Amendment to Bylaws of Ballantyne of Omaha, 8-K 99.1 May 1, 2007
Inc.
3.2.5 Fifth Amendment to Bylaws of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. S-8 4.11 May 16, 2014
4.1 Rights Agreement, dated and effective as of November 8-K 4.1 November 6, 2014

5, 2014, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc, and
Computershare, Inc. as Rights Agent

4.2 Amendment No. 1 dated and effective as of April 27, 8-K 4.1 May 1, 2015
2015, to Rights Agreement between Ballantyne Strong,
Inc. and Computershare, Inc. as Rights Agent

10.1  Agreement on Distribution of DLP Cinema Projectors, 10-Q 10.1 November 14,
dated as of October 1, 2006, between Strong Westrex 2006
Company and NEC Viewtechnology, Ltd.

10.2  Operating Agreement of Digital Link II, LLC, dated as 10-K 10.8 April 2,2007
of March 6, 2007, among Ballantyne of Omaha, Inc.,
Digital Link II, LLC and REAL D

10.3  Authorized Reseller Agreement, dated as of January 21, 10-K 10.10 March 23, 2010
2010, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and NEC Display

Solutions of America, Inc.

10.4*  Ballantyne of Omaha, Inc. 2005 Restricted Stock Schedule Appendix  April 26, 2005
Plan 14A D

60



10.4.1*

10.5%*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8%*

10.9%*

10.10%*

10.11%*

10.12%*

10.13*

10.14%*

10.15%*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19

10.20*

Amendment No. 1 to the Ballantyne Strong, Inc. 2005
Restricted Stock Plan

Ballantyne Strong, Inc. 2014 Non-Employee Directors’
Restricted Stock Plan

Ballantyne Strong, Inc. 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan
(as amended and restated)

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Ballantyne
Strong, Inc. 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the
Ballantyne Strong, Inc. 2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Employment Agreement, dated as of September 23,
2009, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and John P.
Wilmers

Amendment No. 4 to Executive Employment
Agreement, dated September 23, 2009, between
Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and John P. Wilmers

Executive Employment Agreement, dated July 26, 2011,
between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Mary Carstens

Executive Employment Agreement, dated February 14,
2012, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Ray F.
Boegner

Executive Employment Agreement, dated December 20,
2013, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Christopher
D. Stark

Executive Employment Agreement, dated November 1,
2010, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Gary Cavey

Separation and Release Agreement, dated May 6, 2015,
between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Gary L. Cavey

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of
November 2, 2015, between Convergent Media Systems
Corporation and Steve Schilling

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of November 22,
2015, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Stephen L.
Schilling

Stock Option Agreement under Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
2010 Long-Term Incentive Plan, dated as of November
22,2015, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Stephen
L. Schilling

Settlement Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2015,
between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and Fundamental
Global Partners, LP, Fundamental Global Partners
Master Fund, LP, Fundamental Global Partners GP,
LLC, FG Partners GP, LLC, and Fundamental Global
Investors, LLC

Separation and Release Agreement, dated as of

November 10, 2015, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
and David Anderson
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14A

14A

8-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

Schedule Exhibit C

Schedule Appendix

A

10.1

10.1

10.2

10.5.1

10.5

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.1

10.1

10.1

10.3

10.4

10.01

April 20, 2010

March 31, 2014

May 20, 2014

November 27,

2015

November 27,
2015

May 14, 2010

May 14, 2010

November 9, 2011

May 4, 2012

December 24,
2013

November 15,
2010

May 11, 2015

November 4, 2015

November 27,
2015

November 27,
2015

April 22, 2015



10.21* Separation and Release Agreement, dated as of X
November 9, 2015, between Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and

Christopher Stark
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant are as follows:
Jurisdiction of
Name Incorporation
a.  Strong Westrex, Inc. Nebraska
b.  Strong Technical Services, Inc. Nebraska
c.  Strong/MDI Screen Systems, Inc. Canada
d. Strong Westrex (Beijing) Technology Inc. China
e. Convergent Corporation Georgia
f.  Convergent Media Systems Corporation Georgia
23 Consent of KPMG LLP X
24 The Power of Attorney authorizing D. Kyle Cerminara X

and Nathan D. Legband to sign the Annual Report on
Form 10-K, and any amendments thereto, for fiscal 2015
on behalf of non-management directors

31.1  Principal Executive Officer’s Certification pursuant to X
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2  Principal Financial Officer’s Certification pursuant to X
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1*%*  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2%*%  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from Ballantyne Strong, Inc.’s X
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2015, formatted in XBRL (Extensible
Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of
Operations, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (loss), (iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Stockholders Equity; (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Management contract or compensatory plan.
**  Furnished herewith.
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Ballantyne Strong, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (File Nos. 333-03849, 333-116739, 333-
139177, 333-153408, 333-169115, 333-196019, and 333-207921) on Form S-8 of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. (the Company)
of our reports dated March 7, 2016, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive
income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2015, and the related financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2015, which reports appear in the December 31, 2015 annual report on Form 10-K of Ballantyne Strong,
Inc..

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 7, 2016



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each of the Directors of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. (the “Company”), whose signatures appear below, hereby
appoints D. Kyle Cerminara and Nathan D. Legband, or either of them, as his attorney to sign, in his name and behalf
and in any and all capacities stated below, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 13 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and likewise to sign any and all amendments and other documents relating thereto as
shall be necessary, such person hereby granting to each such attorney power to act with or without the other and full
power of substitution and revocation, and hereby ratifying all that any such attorney or his substitute may do by virtue
hereof.

This Power of Attorney has been signed by the following persons in the capacity indicated.

/s/ Samuel C. Freitag

Samuel C. Freitag, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ James C. Shay

James C. Shay, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ Charles T. Lanktree

Charles T. Lanktree, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ Marc E. LeBaron

Marc E. LeBaron, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ William J. Gerber

William J. Gerber, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ Robert J. Marino

Robert J. Marino, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ Robert J. Roschman

Robert J. Roschman, Director
Date: March 7, 2016

/s/ Ndamukong Suh
Ndamukong Suh, Director
Date: March 7, 2016




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, D. Kyle Cerminara, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 of Ballantyne
Strong, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

By:/s/ D. KYLE CERMINARA
D. Kyle Cerminara
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 7, 2016



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Nathan D. Legband, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 of Ballantyne
Strong, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

() Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

By:/s/ NATHAN D. LEGBAND

Nathan D. Legband
Chief Financial Officer

March 7, 2016



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned, D. Kyle Cerminara, Chief Executive Officer of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. (the “Company”), has
executed this certification in connection with the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the “Report™).

The undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to his knowledge that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this certification as of the 7th day of March, 2016.

/s/ D. KYLE CERMINARA
D. Kyle Cerminara
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
and will be retained by Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned, Nathan D. Legband, Chief Financial Officer of Ballantyne Strong, Inc. (the “Company”), has
executed this certification in connection with the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the “Report™).

The undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to his knowledge that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this certification as of the 7th day of March, 2016.

/s/ NATHAN D. LEGBAND

Nathan D. Legband
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Ballantyne Strong, Inc.
and will be retained by Ballantyne Strong, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon request.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

D. KYLE CERMINARA
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SAMUEL C. FREITAG (1)(2)(3)
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATING AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

JAMES C. SHAY (1)(3)
CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHARLES T. LANKTREE (2)(3)

CHAIRMAN OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

MARC E. LEBARON (1)(2)(3)
WILLIAM J. GERBER (1)(2)(3)
ROBERT J. MARINO (1)(2)(3)
ROBERT J. ROSCHMAN (2)(3)

NDAMUKONG SUH

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

D. KYLE CERMINARA
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

NATHAN D. LEGBAND
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER AND TREASURER

RAY F. BOEGNER
PRESIDENT OF CINEMA

STEPHEN L. SCHILLING
PRESIDENT OF DIGITAL MEDIA

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

BALLANTYNE STRONG, INC.
13710 FNB PARKWAY, SUITE 400
OMAHA, NEBRASKA 68154
(402) 453-4444

(402) 453-7238 (FAX)

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

SECURITIES LISTING
NYSE MKT (SYMBOL: BTN)

TRANSFER AGENT

BROADRIDGE CORPORATE ISSUER
SOLUTIONS

PO BOX 1342 BRENTWOQOOD, NY 11717
SHAREHOLDER@BROADRIDGE.COM
855-449-0975

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

KPMG LLP
OMAHA, NEBRASKA

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
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OMAHA, NEBRASKA

ANNUAL MEETING

THE ANNUAL MEETING OF THE
STOCKHOLDERS WILL BE HELD ON MAY 23,
2016 AT 1:00 PM. (LOCAL TIME) AT THE
FOLLOWING LOCATION:

THE WESTIN
400 CORPORATE DR.
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33334
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REPORTS MAY BE ACCESSED THROUGH OUR
WEBSITE AT
WWW.BALLANTYNESTRONG.COM.
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